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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that Twelfth (12%) Annual General Meeting of the members of VMS
TMT Limited will be held on Monday, 15% day of September, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at the
registered office of the Company situated at Survey No. 214, Near Water Tank, Bhayla,
Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, India, 382220 to transact the following business at shorter
notice:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Statement of the Company
including Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2025, Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Directors’
and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rishabh Singhi (DIN: 09342922) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. To Ratify Cost Auditors’ Remuneration:

To consider ratification of Cost Auditors’ Remuneration and if thought fit to pass with
or without madification the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESCLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 ({including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s.
Anuj Aggarwal & Co. Cost Accountants, (FRN: 102409) appointed by the Board of
Directors of the Company on recommendation of Audit Committee to conduct the
audit of the cost records maintained by the Company for the financial year 2025-26,
for remuneration of ¥ 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand Cnly) (plus taxes and
re-reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses) be and is hereby ratified and
confirmed”.

“RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to
do all such acts, deeds and things and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper
or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

4. To Approve Material Related Party Transactions: -




To consider and approve Related Party Transactions and if thought fit to pass with or
without modification the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014; and
pursuant to the revised Regulation 27(2)(b) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and in accordance with the prevailing provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and subject to
such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any authorities as may
be necessary, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company to enter into related party transaction(s) including
material related party transactions for Financial Year 2026-27 & 2027-28.

sr. Name of Period of Maximum
No Related Nature of Transactich Transaction Amount

Party

(a) Sale, purchase or supply of any
goods or materials;

(b) Selling or otherwise disposing
of, orbuying, property of any kind; Rupees 500
(c) Leasing of property of any Crore.

kind;

(d) Availing or rendering of any
services;

{(e) Appointment of any agent for
purchase or sale of goods,
VMS materials, services or property;

2. Industries (f] Such related party's 2026-27
Limited appointment to any office or place
of profit in the company, its &
subsidiary company or associate 2027-28
company; and

{(g) Underwriting the subscription
of any securities or derivatives
thereof, of the company.

(i) Take inter corporate loans and
Yohaan advance; Rupees 100
Enterprise (i) Grant inter corporate loans and Crore.
advance;

Aditya
1. Ultra Steel
Limited

Rupees 500
Crore.

(k) Take or Give Guarantee,
sorety, indemnity or comfort
letter by whatever name called

The contract(s)/ transaction(s) so carried out shall at all times be on arm’s length basis
and in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, on such terms and conditions as
may be mutually agreed upon the parties.

“RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or Managing Director be and is
hereby authorized to decide upon the nature and value of the products, goods,
materials, assets or services to be transacted within the aforesaid limits.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain, (DIN: 03502561),
Managing Director or Mr. Rishabh Sunil Singhi (DIN: 09342522), Whole Time Director
of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to settle any question,
difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such
acts and things as may be considered necessary and expedient for the purpose of
giving effect to this resolution.”




“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to delegate all
or any of the powers conferred on it by or under this Resolution to any Committee
of Directors of the Company or to any one or more Directors of the Company or any
other officer(s) or employee(s) of the Company as it may consider appropriate in
order to give effect to this Resolution.”

5. To consider the appointment of Secretarial Auditor and if thought fit to pass with or
without modification the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and
Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (including any statutory
modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), and in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors
of the Company, M/s. Umesh Ved & Associates, Company Secretaries in practice,
(Peer Review Number 6564/2025]) be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for a term of five (5) consecutive years, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of
five consecutive financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30 on such remuneration and
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for the purpose of audit as may be
approved by the Audit Committee/Board of Directors of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to
the Board to avail or obtain from the Secretarial Auditor, such other services or
certificates, reports, or opinions which the Secretarial Auditors may be eligible to
provide or issue under the applicable laws, at a remuneration to be determined by
the Audit Committee/Board of Directors of the Company.

“RESCLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized
to take all actions and do all such deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary,
proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in
this regard.”

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
: VMS TMT LIMITED
/BTl
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Place: Bhayla VARUN MANOJKUMAR JAIN
Date: 13.09.2025 MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 03502561
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NOTE

. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself and proxy need not be a member. A
person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and holding
in aggregate not more than 10% (Ten percent) of the total share capital of the
Company. Proxies submitted on behalf of corporate members must be supported
by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable

. The explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
setting out the material facts is annexed hereto

. Proxy in the prescribed Form No. MGT - 11 as enclosed herewith, in order to be
effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company duly
completed, signed and stamped, not less than 48 (Forty-Eight) hours before the
time of holding this Annual General Meeting [“AGM”).

. Pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and rules framed
thereunder, the corporate members intending to send their authorised
representatives to attend the AGM are requested to send to the Company, a
certified copy of the Board Resolution or Power of Attorney, if any, authorising
their representative(s) to attend and vote, on their behalf, at the AGM.

. Members who have not registered their e-mail id so far are requested to register
their e-mail id for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices,
Circulars, etc. from the Company in electronic form

. Members/Proxies are requested to bring the Attendance Slip duly filled in at the
AGM venue.

. The Register maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the Act, will be
available at the registered office of the company for inspection by the members

during the AGM.

. The route map of the Registered Office of the Company forms part of the notice.




Information as required under regulation 36(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (5§S-2) in respect of directors seeking re-

appointment / appointment:

Name of director

Mr. Rishabh Singhi (DIN: 09342922)

Date of Birth 23/09/1998
Age 26 Years
Nationality Indian

Qualification & experience / brief resume /
Nature of Expertise in functional area.

Rishabh Sunil Singhi, aged twenty-six
(26) years is the Promoter and Whole-
time Director of our Company. He has
been associated with our Company
since October G, 2021. He holds a degree
in Bachelor of Technology in Civil
Engineering from Pandit Deendayal
Energy University. He has more than
three (3) years of experience in the steel
sector.

Terms and Conditions of Re-appointment

The director is liable to retire by
rotation and offers himself for re-
appointment

Remuneration Last Drawn

Rs. 4,00,000 for Month August, 2025

Remuneration proposed to be paid

Not Applicable

Original Date of appointment on Board 09/10/2021
No. of Shares Held in the Company /|1,20,14,760
Shareholding

Relationship with other Directors / Key | NA.
Managerial Personnel

No. of Meetings of Board attended during the | 25

year 2024-25

Directorship of Other Companies NIL
Chairmanship / Membership of Committees of | NIL

other Companies

Listed entities from which the person has | NIL

resigned in the past three years




Explanatory Statement pursuant to the Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
Item No 3:

M/s. Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants, (FRN: 102409) has been appointed, on
recommendation of the Audit Committee, as the Cost Auditor of the Company by the Board of
Directors to conduct the cost audit of the cost records for the financial year ending on 31%
March, 2025 at a remuneration of Rs. 25,000/-.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Audit and Auditor) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors
recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, has to be
ratified by the members of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing Ordinary Resolution as set out in
the Item No. 4 of the notice for ratification of the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the
financial year ending on 31% March, 2026.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is, in
any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item
No. 3 of the Notice.

The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at [tem No. 3 of the
Natice for approval by the shareholders.

Item No 4:

Pursuant to the provisions of the section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with
the rule 15(3) of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 ('Rules’), and
as per the regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations the Company is required to obtain
consent of the Board of Directors and prior approval of the members by way of Ordinary
resolution, in case certain transactions with related parties exceeds such sum as specified in the
said Rules.

The said transactions to be entered are in the best interest of the company and for future growth
and prospects.

The details of the transaction to be entered are as below:

Name of Related Party VMS Industries Limited Aditya Ultra steel Limited
(AUSL)

Name of the director or key 1. Mr. Manojkumar Jain, Mr. Varun Manojkumar

managerial personnel who is Non-executive Director Jain, Managing Director

related, if any (DIN: 02190018). (DIN: 03502561).

Nature of relationship Mr. Manojkumar Jain is a Mr. Varun Manojkumar
Managing Director of VMS Jain is a non-executive
Industries Limited. director of AUSL.
Shareholding of interested | Shareholding of interested
director in VMS Industries director in AUSL as on
Limited as on 30/06/2025: | 31/03/2025:




Name Shares | %

Manojkumar | 6168100 | 25.20

Jain

Name | Shares %o
Varun | 41,24,260 | 16.61
M. Jain

Nature, material terms,
monetary value and
particulars of the contract or
arrangements;

As mentioned in Ordinary
Resolution.

As mentioned in Ordinary
Resolution.

Material Terms and particulars
of the arrangement /
Transactions

Asg set outin the resolution.

Ag get outin the
resolution,

Duration of the contract

2026-27 &2027-28

2026-27 £ 2027-28

Percentage of the Listed
entities annual consolidated
turnover for the Immediate
preceding Financial Year i.e,
represented by the value of the
proposed transaction

65%

65%

If the transaction relates to any
loans, inter-corporate deposits,
advances or investments made
or given by the listed entity or
its subsidiary:
i. details of the source of funds
in  connection with the
proposed transaction;
ii. where any financial
indebtedness is incurred to
make or give loans,
interoperate deposits,
advances or investments,

- nature of indebtedness;

- caost of funds; and

- tenure;
iii. applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate
and repayment schedule,
whether secured or unsecured;
if secured, the nature of
security; and

iv. the purpose for which the
funds will be utilized by the
ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT.

i. Liquid Surplus Funds /Internal Source of Fund

ii. Not Applicable

1. Tenure: 1 Year (renew every 1 year)

2, Interest Rate: Not lower than lower than the prevailing
yield of one year, three year, five year or ten year
Government Security closest to the tenor of the loan.

3. Nature: Unsecured

iv. Use for their principal business activity(ies).

Justification as to why the RPT
is in the interest of the
Company.

Justification stated below.

A statement that the valuation
or other external report, if any
such report has been relied
upon.

Not Applicable
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Any other information
relevant or important for the
members to take a decision on
the proposed resolution.

As note mentioned below.

As note mentioned below.

Name of Related Party

1. Mr. Manojkumar Jain, Non-
executive Director (DIN: 02190018);
2. Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain,

Managing Director (DIN: 03502561).

Name of the director or key managerial personnel
who is related, if any

Mr. Manojkumar Jain and Mr. Varun
Jain are partners of Yohan
Enterprise.

Nature of relationship

As mentioned in Ordinary
Resolution.

Nature, material terms, monetary value and
particulars of the contract or arrangements;

As set out in the resolution.

Material Terms and particulars of the arrangement /
Transactions

2026-27 & 2027-28

Duration of the contract

As note mentioned below.

Percentage of the Listed entities annual consolidated
turnover for the Immediate preceding Financial Year
i.e., represented by the value of the proposed
transaction

13%

If the transaction relates to any loans, inter-corporate
deposits, advances or investments made or given by
the listed entity or its subsidiary:
i. details of the source of funds in connection with the
proposed transaction;
ii. where any financial indebtedness is incurred to
make or give loans, interoperate deposits, advances
or investments,

- nature of indebtedness;

- caost of funds; and

- tenure;
iii. applicable terms, including covenants, tenure,
interest rate and repayment schedule, whether
secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of
security; and

iv. the purpose for which the funds will be utilized by
the ultimate beneficiary of such funds pursuant to the
RPT.

i. Liquid Surplus Funds /Internal
Source of Fund
ii. Not Applicable

iii.

1. Tenure: 1 Year (renew every 1
year)

2. Interest Rate: Not lower than
lower than the prevailing yield of
one year, three year, five year or ten
year Government Security closest
to the tenor of the loan.

3. Nature: Unsecured

iv. Use for their principal business
activity(ies).

Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the
Company.

Justification stated below.

A statement that the valuation or other external
report, if any such report has been relied upon.

Not Applicable




Any other information relevant or important for the | 1. Mr. Manojkumar Jain, Non-
members to take a decision on the proposed executive Director (DIN: 02190018);
resolution. 2. Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain,

Managing Director (DIN: 03502561).

Justification as to why the RPT is in the interest of the Company / other information
relevant and important for the members to take a decision on the proposed resolution:
Above related entity is involved in the business of manufacturing TMT Bars, steel industry,
ship recycling and incidental activities thereto. Your Company is also involved in same
business and incidental thereto hence your Company is able to take advantage of the large
volumes at a better negotiated price for its comparatively smaller volume and to provide
financial assistance to related party.

The Board of Directors recommend the resolution given in this Notice for your approval asan
ordinary Resolution. The approval of the members of the Company for the above referred
transaction(s) is omnibus and is being sought with a view to avoid business exigencies and to
facilitate smooth operations in the interest of the Company. The value of the actual
transaction(s) may be substantially lesser than the approved amounts of transaction(s).

In accordance with the provisions of section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 read with
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations
(LODR) 2015, the agenda for approval of related party transactions, all related parties,
including the above, are in concerned or interested in passing of resolution.

Interested Shareholders would not be eligible to vote on the said resolution in term of Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations. The Board of Directors recommends
passing of the resolution as set out in this Notice as an Ordinary Resolution.

The Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the
Notice for approval by the shareholders.

Except interested directors and their relative(s) as mentioned above, none of the other
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or any of their relatives, are concerned
or interested in the above proposed resolution.

Item No 5:

Pursuant to the regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Cbligations
and Disclosure Requirements] (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”), on the basis of recommendation of Board of Directors, the Company shall
appoint an individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than one term of five consecutive
years;, with the approval of the shareholders in Annual General Meeting (“AGM").

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved
the appointment of M/s. Umesh Ved & Associates (UVA), Company Secretaries in Practice,
(Peer Review Number: 6564/2025), as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period
of five consecutive financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30. The appointment is subject to
shareholders approval at the AGM. While recommending UVA for appointment, the Audit
Committee and the Board based on past audit experience of the audit firm particularly in
auditing large companies, valuated various factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a
diverse and complex business environment, its existing experience in the various business
segments, the clientele it serves, and its technical expertise.




Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended, the credentials and
terms of appointment of UVA are as under:

Profile:

M/s. Umesh Ved & Associates is Ahmedabad based leading firm of practicing company
secretaries established in the year 1998. The firm is engaged in services of corporate laws
compliances, advisory and consultancy, secretarial audit, certifications, acquisition,
corporate due diligence, restructuring, M&A, legal takeover, compliances, corporate
governance, Securities Law, IBC Law, appearance before the quasi-judicial bodies and
adjudication authorities and allied services.

The firm is well equipped with all & necessary infrastructure and team with professionals.
The firm has reputed listed and unlisted entities in its client list. Detailed information of M/s.
Umesh Ved and Associates may be referred at their website at http:
//www.umeshvedcs.com/,

Terms of appointment:

UVA is proposed to be appointed for a term of five (5) consecutive years, to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of five consecutive financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30.

Remuneration:

The proposed fees payable to Secretarial Auditor is mutually decided with Nomination
remuneration Committee and approved by Board which amounts to Rs. 75,000/-. The said
fees shall exclude GST, certification fees, applicable taxes, reimbursements and other outlays.

The Audit Committee / Board is proposed to be authorised to revise the fee, from time to time
with the consultation of Secretarial Auditor.

The Board of Directors recommends the ordinary resolution, as set outin item 5 of this Notice
for your approval.

None of the Directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives is in any way concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
VMS TMT LIMITED

- e

Place: Bhayla VARUN MANOJKUMAR JAIN
Date: 13/09/2025 MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN: 03502561
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ROUTE MAP OF VENUE OF THE MEETING
12th Annual General Meeting of VMS TMT Limited

Venue: Survey No. 214, Near Water Tank, Bhayla, Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, India,
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FORMNO. MGT 11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the member(s):
Registered Address:
E-mail 1d:

Folio No./Client Id

DP ID:

[/We, being the member(s) of VMS TMT LIMITED, holding shares of the above-named
company, here by appoint:

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature: or failing him

2. Name;
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:

Asmy / our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my /our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting to be held on Monday, 15 day of September, 2025 at 12:00 p.m. at the
registered office of the company and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Statement of the Company
including Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash
Flow Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Directors” and the
Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Rishabh Singhi (DIN: 09342922) who retires by

rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To Ratify Cost Auditors’ Remuneration.

To approve Material Related party transactions.

To consider the appointment of Secretarial Auditor

o1 W

Signed this............. day of.......... 2025
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Affix
Re.1/-
Revenue
stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxyholder(s)
Note: This form in order to be effective should be duly stamped, completed and signed

and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the company, not less than 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd.Folio No........... *DPID ...........
**ClientID ...........

Annual General Meeting - 15/09/2025

I certifythatlam a Member/ Proxy for the Member ofthe Company.

[ hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on Monday,
15t day of September, 2025 at 12:00 P.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated
Survey No. 214, Near Water Tank, Bhayla, Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, India, 382220.

*Member's/ Proxy's Name in Block Letter *Member's/ Proxy Signature

Note:

1. Member/ Proxy must bring the Attendance Slip to the Meeting and hand it over, duly
signed, at the registration counter.

2.  Thecopy ofthe Notice may please be broughttothe Meeting Hall.

*  Strike outwhicheverisnotapplicable.

**  Applicable only in case of investors holding shares in Electronic Form.
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Registered Post

To,

If undelivered, please return to:

VMS TMT LIMITED

Address: Survey No. 214, Near Water Tank, Bhayla,
Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, India, 382220

CIN: U27204G]J2013PLC074403

Phane: 6357585711

E-mail Id.: www.ymstmt.com
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VMS TMT LIMITED

Regd. Off. & Factory:
Survey No. 214, Nr. Water Tank,
Village — Bhayla, Tal. Bavla. Dist. Ahmedabad-382220.
Email: compliance@vmstmt.com
Tel: 6357585711 CIN No. U27204GJ2013PLCOT74403
Website: www.vmstmt.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION (01.04.2024-31.03.2025)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
1. Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain Managing Director
2. Mr. Rishabh Sunil Singhi Whole Time Director
3. Mr. Manojkumar Jain Director
4, Ms. Jasmin Jaykumar Doshi Independent Director
5. Mr. Vinod Bhanwer Singh Independent Director
6. Mr. Vivek Dinesh Nathwani Independent Director
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
1. Mr. Varun Jain Managing Director
2. Mr. Rishabh Sunil Singhi Whole Time Director
3. Mr. Vikram Babubhai Patel Chief Financial Officer
4, Mr. Vijay Amrabhai Boliya Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Name of the Director Designation
Mr. Vivek Dinesh Nathwani Chairman
Mr. Vinodkumar Bhanwer Singh  Member
Ms. Jasmin Jaykumar Doshi Member
Mr. Manojkumar Jain Member

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Name of the Director Designation
Ms. Jasmin Jaykumar Doshi Chairman
Mr. Vivek Dinesh Nathwani Member

Mr. Manojkumar Jain Member

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

Name of the Director Designation
Mr. Vinodkumar Bhanwer Singh Chairman
Ms. Jasmin Jaykumar Doshi Member

Mr. Rishabh Sunil Singhi Member

Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain Member
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VMS TMT LIMITED

Regd. Off. & Factory:
Survey No. 214, Nr. Water Tank,
Village — Bhayla, Tal. Bavla. Dist. Ahmedabad-382220.
Email: compliance@vmstmt.com
Tel: 6357585711 CIN No. U27204GJ2013PLCOT74403
Website: www.vmstmt.com

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:

Name of the Director Designation
Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain Chairman
Mr. Rishabh Sunil Singhi Member

Mr. Vinodkumar Bhanwer Singh Member

BANKERS

HDFC Bank

Axis Bank

ICICI Bank

SVC Co-Operative bank Ltd

STATUTORY AUDITORS COST AUDITORS

M/S Suresh Chandra & Associates M/s. Anuj Aggarwal & Co,,
Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad Cost Accountants, Ahmedabad
Firm Reg No. 001359N Firm Reg No. 102409

INTERNAL AUDITORS SECRETARIAL AUDITORS
M/s. N.R. KALAL & Associates, M/s. Umesh Ved & Associates,

Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad
Firm Reg No.0149215W

REGISTERED OFFICE:

Survey No. 214, Near Water Tank,
Bhayla, Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat,
India, 382220

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER:
U27204G)2013PLC074403
EMAIL: compliance@vmstmt.com
Contact No. 6357585711

DIRECTORS’'REPORT

To,
The Members,
VMS TMT LIMITED
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VMS TMT LIMITED

Regd. Off. & Factory:
Survey No. 214, Nr. Water Tank,
Village — Bhayla, Tal. Bavla. Dist. Ahmedabad-382220.
Email: compliance@vmstmt.com
Tel: 6357585711 CIN No. U27204GJ2013PLCOT74403
Website: www.vmstmt.com

Survey No 214 Nr. Water Tank,
Bhayla Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat,
India, 382220

The Board of Directors of the company are pleased to present the 12th Annual Report of
the Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’ Report of
company for the financial year ended 31%March, 2025.

EINANCIALS SUMMARY & HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of the financial results for the financial year 2024-25 along with previous

financial year 2023-24 are as follows:

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from operations 77.019.10 87.295.77
Other Income 121.66 21.09
Total revenue 77,140.76 87,316.86
Expenditure

Cost of material consumed 52,781.10 75,023.48
Purchase of Trading goods 12415.76 2,200.87
Change in inventories (2,042.04) (411.99)
Financial Cost 1984.76 1,819.23
Employee benefits expenses 1,322.37 1,024.17
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 680.53 394.37
Other expenses 7989.88 537243
Total expenses 75,132.38 85,422.58
Profit before exceptional and extra ordinary

items and tax 2,008.38 1,894.28
Profit before tax 2,008.38 1,894.28
Tax expense:

Current Tax 318.18 379.64
Deferred Tax 148.46 194.63
Profit After Tax 1,541.75 1,320.00
Net profit for the year 1,473.60 1,327.69
Earning per equity shares (Basic & Diluted) 4.29 3.93

2. REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND STATEMENT OF COMPANY’S AFFAIR:
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The Company was incorporated on 09t April, 2013. Your company is engaged in
manufacturing of thermo-mechanically-treated (TMT) bars.

The demand for TMT bars is growing due to the construction industry's expansion and the
need for steel in infrastructure development. India's TMT bar market is expected to grow
significantly between 2022 and 2030. In FY24, India consumed 41.73 million tonnes of
TMT bars, which is up from 39.0 million tonnes in the previous fiscal year.

The Company has reported income from operation during the year of Rs. 77,019.10 (Rupee
in Lakhs) as compared to the previous year's income from operation of Rs. 87,295.77
(Rupee in Lakhs) The Company due to has earned net Profit before tax of Rs. 2,008.38 lakhs
as against previous year’s net Profit before tax of Rs. 1,894.28 lakhs and Profit after tax of
Rs. 1541.75 Lakhs and as against previous year's profit after tax of Rs. 1320.00.

THE AMOUNTS WHICH IT PROPOSES TO CARRY TO ANY RESERVES:

The board has decided not to transfer the amount to any reserves during the year under
review.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER:

Initially, the company has authorized Initial Public Offer by the Board of Directors vide a
resolution passed at its meeting held on July 22, 2024 and by the Shareholder of our
Company, vide a special resolution passed pursuant to Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24/07/2024.

However, later the filing of Draft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) was withdrawn by
company by passing a special resolution for rescinding the previous special resolution in
accordance with SS-2 dated 17/03/2025, with respect to the amendments to the object of
the issue for which fund raising was proposed to be held.

Further the company had taken fresh approval of members by way of passing special
resolution, for resubmission of DRHP with amended objectives on 17/03/2025.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY:

. . . Subscribed Capital &
Year Authorized Capital Issued Capital Paid-Up Capital
Shares Rs. Shares Rs. Shares Rs.

fgﬁt? 5,10,00.000 | 51,00,00,000] 3,46,31.210 | 34.63.12.100 | 3.4631,210 | 34,63,12,100
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2023-24

[P.F.Y] 2,00,00,000 | 20,00,00,000| 1,33,37,124 | 13,33,71,240 | 1,33,37,124 | 13,33,71,240

. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the authorized share capital of the company has changes
twice. The detail of which is as under:

Date of Passing of Authorized Capital
Resolution Increased From Increased To
Shares Rs. Shares Rs.
11.05.2024 2,00,00,000 20,00,00,000 | 3,50,00,000 35,00,00,000
15.07.2024 3,50,00,000 35,00,00,000 | 5,10,00,000 51,00,00,000

[1. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

During the financial year 2024-25, the company had made preferential allotment and bonus
issue of equity share of the company, the brief details of which are as follows

Nature of Allotment Date of !\Io. of Equity share Facr.e Value Per
allotment issued equity share

Preferential allotment | 19.06.2024 2,11,000 10

Bonus issue 22.06.2024 2,03,22,186 10

Preferential allotment | 22.07.2024 7,640,900 10

THE CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There is no change in the Nature of Business during the financial year under review.
DIVIDEND:

Looking to the requirement of the funds for internal growth of the Company, the Board of
Directors of the Company have decided not to recommend any dividend for the year ended
on 31st March, 2025.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

During the year under review, The Company does not have any Subsidiary/ Associate
Company/Joint Venture Company/Holding Company at the year ended 31stMarch, 2025.

DEPOSITS:
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The Company has not invited/accepted any Deposit within the meaning of Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 other than exempted deposit as prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013, Hence there are no particulars to report about the deposit falling under Rule 8 (5) (v)
and (vi) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS:

The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights during the year
under review and hence no information as per provisions of Rule 4(4) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is required to furnish.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO SWEAT EQUITY SHARES:

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and
hence no information as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME AND EMPLOYEE
STOCK PURCHASE SCHEME:

The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme or Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme. Hence no information as per the provisions of Rule 12(9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 has been furnished.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has adequate internal controls and processes in place with respect to its
financial statements which provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements. These controls and
processes are driven through various policies, procedures and certifications. The processes
and controls are reviewed periodically. The Company's internal control system is
commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
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The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has
adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that is free from
discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has in place an
internal compliant committee and robust policy on prevention of sexual harassment at
workplace. The policy aims at prevention of harassment of employees as well as
contractors and lays down the guidelines for identification, reporting and prevention of
sexual harassment.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual
harassment. Accordingly, the requirement of disclosing the number of complaints received,
disposed of and or pending for more than 90 days is not applicable.

Number of complaints of Sexual Harassment received | 0
in the Year

Number of Complaints disposed off during the year 0
Number of cases pending for more than ninety days 0

TRANSFER TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

During the year under review, the provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
do not apply as there was no dividend declared and paid in last seven years so the
Company was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government pursuant to the provision of
Section 125 (e) of the Companies Act, 2013 as there is no amounts unclaimed for a period
of 7 years from the date it became due for repayment.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Pursuant to Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Accounts]) Rules, 2014 and section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company has effectively taken steps for conservation of
resources and all effective measures have been taken to save energy.

(A) Conservation of energy-

Page | 8




18.

VMS TMT LIMITED

Regd. Off. & Factory:
Survey No. 214, Nr. Water Tank,
Village — Bhayla, Tal. Bavla. Dist. Ahmedabad-382220.
Email: compliance@vmstmt.com
Tel: 6357585711 CIN No. U27204GJ2013PLCOT74403
Website: www.vmstmt.com

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1. The steps taken or impact on conservation of | To reduce our electricity
energy expenses, we have
initiated the process of
setting up of a 15 MW
solar power plant in
Gujarat for our captive
consumption.
2. The steps taken by the company for utilizing | Installation of Solar Power
alternate sources of energy. plant.
3. Capital Investment The proposed capital

investment on energy
conservation equipment:
We estimate that the cost
of this solar power plant
will be X 4,640 lakhs.

(B) Technology absorption-

The Company has taken precautionary steps for technology absorption by implementing
various measures & efforts which improve the productivity of the machineries, improve
quality of a product, reduce the cost of a manufacturing and no specific investment has
been made in reduction in technology absorption.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

During the period under review foreign exchange earnings or out flow reported as follow:
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars | Amount In Foreign currency

Out Flow 4216

Earning

Nil

VIGIL MECHANISM:

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the company has adopted Whistle
Blower Policy to deal with any instance of fraud and mismanagement. The employees of the
company are free to report violations of any laws, rules, regulations and concerns about
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unethical conduct to the Audit Committee under this policy. The policy ensures that strict
confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no discrimination
with any person for a genuinely raised concern. No complaint received during the financial
year under review.,

BOARD MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors met 25 times during the financial vear ended March 31, 2025 in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Dates of Board meeting are as follows:

05.04.2024, 03.05.2024, 03.06.2024, 19.06.2024, 22.06.2024, 12.07.2024, 18.07.2024,
22.07.2024, 27.07.2024, 07.08.2024, 12.08.2024, 02.09.2024, 19.09.2024, 24.09.2024,
27.09.2024, 16.10.2024, 23.10.2024, 09.11.2024, 01.12.2024, 28.12.2024, 14.02.2025,
10.03.2025, 18.03.2025, 27.03.2025 and 29.03.2025

All the Directors actively participated in the meetings and provided their valuable inputs
on the matters brought before Board from time to time.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr, Rishabh Sunil
Singhi (DIN: 09342922), retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your directors recommend his re-
appointment.

During the period under review, there were following changes/addition on the board of the
company, the detail of which are as under:-

Varun Managin | Change in designation from
Manojkumar direcgtorg 03.05.2024 - Director to Managing
Jain Director
Rishabh Sunil | Whole Time Change in designation from
o ) 03.05.2024 - Director to Whole Time
Singhi Director Di
lrector
Jasmin Independent Change in designation from
Jaykumar Dil?ector 03.05.2024 11.05.2024 | additional director to
Doshi Independent Director
Vinodkumar | Independent | 03.05.2024 11.05.2024 | Change in designation from
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Bhanwer Singh Director additional director to
Independent Director
Vivek Independent Change in designation from
. P 03.05.2024 | 11.05.2024 | additional director to
Nathwani Director )
Independent Director
Vikram Chief
Babubhai Patel Flna.ncml 03.05.2024 -
Officer
Vijay
Amrabhai tompany |43 45 2024 -
. Secretary
Boliya

21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSBLITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of the Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
directors confirm that:

a)

b)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of
the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

the Directors, in the case of a listed company, had laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively is not applicable to the company.

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All the transactions/contracts/arrangements of the nature as specified in Section 188(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company during the year under review with
related party (ies) are in ordinary course of business and on arm’s length. AOC-2 is forming
part of this report as Annexure 1.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The provision of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for implementing Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, constitute
committee and expenditure thereof is Applicable to the Company. During the year, the
Company has paid Rs. 22.46 (In lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses.
The detail Report on CSR has been attached herewith as Annexure I1.

24. AUDITORS:

A. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Company appointed M/s. Suresh Chandra & Associates, Chartered Accountants
having Firm Registration no. 001359N as statutory auditor of the company to hold
office from conclusion of 11t Annual general meeting till the concdusion of 16%
Annual General meeting of the company to be held in year 2029, Further members of
the company have approved their appointment in their general meeting held on 30%
September, 2024 based on board recommendation.

The report given by the Statutory Auditors on the financial statements of the
Company is a part of the Annual Report.

There has been no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by
the Auditors in their report. There were no frauds reported by the auditors under sub
section 12 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Observations of the auditors in their report together with the notes on accounts are
self-explanatory and therefore, in the opinion of Directors, do not call for any further
explanation.

B. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT:
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As per the requirements of the Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the Company is
required to maintain cost records and accordingly, such accounts are made and
records have been maintained.

M/s. Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants, (FRN: 102409) has conducted the audit
of the cost record of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25. The Cost Audit
Report for FY2024 does not contain any qualification.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee, has re-appointed
M/s. Anuj Aggarwal & Co., Cost Accountants, (FRN: 102409) as Cost Auditor to audit
the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2025-26.

As required under the Act, a resolution seeking member's approval for the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors forms part of the Notice convening the
12t Annual General Meeting for their ratification.

C. INTERNAL AUDITOR:

The Board of Directors has appointed M/s. N R Kalal & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (FRN: 149215W), as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial
Year 2025-26.

D. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014,
the Board of Directors have appointed M/s Umesh Ved & Associates, Company
Secretaries, Ahmedabad (Peer Review Registration No: 6564/2025) as the
secretarial auditor of the Company to conduct secretarial audit for the year 2024-25.
The report of the Secretarial Auditors is annexed herewith as “Annexure lII"

The report of the secretarial auditors is self-explanatory and confirming compliance
by the Company of all the provisions of applicable corporate laws.

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations
2015 (Third Amendment); the Board of Directors have approved and recommended
for approval of members, appointment of M/s Umesh Ved & Associates, Company
Secretaries (Peer Reviewed Firm - Firm Registration Number 6564/2025) as
Secretarial Auditors for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing from FY
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2025-26 to FY 2029-30. Necessary details of M/s Umesh Ved & Associates, Company
Secretaries is given in the resolution and respective explanatory statement given in
the Notice of the ensuing 11t Annual General Meeting.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with all the provisions of Secretarial Standards on Board
Meetings and General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY:

The company understands the value of operating in an ecologically friendly and safe
manner. The Company's philosophy mandates that activities be carried out in such a way
that all parties involved are safe, environmental standards are followed, and natural
resources are preserved.

ANNUAL RETURN ON WEBSITE:

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Act read with the applicable Rules, the copy of Annual Return
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 will be accessed on the Company’s website at
https://vmstmt.com/annual-returns/.

THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR
ALONGWITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

During the year under review, there were no applications made or proceedings pending in
the name of Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS
THEREOF:

During the year under review, there has been no one time settlement of loans taken from
the Banks or Financial Institutions.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company has a structured risk management policy. The Risk management process is
designed to safeguard the organization from various risks through adequate and timely
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actions. The Company has implemented various policies from ground level to the top level
management for identifying the risk, measuring the same and takes corrective measures
for managing the risk.

In the opinion of the Board there has been no identification of element of risk that may
threaten the existence of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The company as on end of financial year ended 315 March, 2025 have 229 number of
employees. The bifurcation of which is as under: -

Female: - 4
Male: - 225
Transgender: -0

Further, there are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of ceilings
prescribed under Section 197 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee has been constituted in line with the provisions of the section 177 of
Companies Act, 2013, The Audit Committee comprised the following members as on
31.03.2025:

Number Number
Sr. . . Member of of
No Name of Members Designation Chairmafl Meeting Meetings
Entitled Attended
Mr. Vivek Dinesh Independent Chairman
1. ) : 12 12
Nathwani Director
2 Mr. Vinodkumar Independent Member 12 12
" | Bhanwer Singh Director
3 Ms, Jasmin Jaykumar | Independent Member 12 12
" | Doshi Director
4, | Mr. Manojkumar Jain | Director Member 12 12

During the financial year 12 (Twelve) Audit Committee meetings were held on following
dates:
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03.05.2024, 03.06.2024, 22.06.2024, 12.07.2024, 18.07.2024, 22.07.2024, 02.09.2024,
19.09.2024, 24.09.2024, 16.01.2025, 14.02.2025, 18.03.2025. Requisite quorum was
present during the meetings.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and provide effective
supervision of the management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely
disclosures, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work
carried out in the financial reporting process by the management, the Statutory Auditors,
Internal Auditor, the Cost Auditor, the Secretarial Auditor and notes the processes and
safeguards employed by each of them.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION OF COMMITTEE:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been constituted in line with the
provisions of the section 178 of Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee comprised the following members as on 31.03.2025:

Number | Number
Sr. . . Member of of
No Name of Members Designation Chairmafl Meeting | Meeting
Entitled | Attended
1 Ms. Jasmin Independent Chairman 4 4
" | Jaykumar Doshi Director
5 Mr. Vivek Dinesh Independent Member 4 4
" | Nathwani Director
Mr. Manojkumar Director Member
3. Jain 4 4

During the year under review, 4{Four) meeting of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was held during the financial year 2024-25 on following date:

27.07.2024, 09.11.2024, 10.03.2025, 18.03.2025. Requisite quorum was present during the
meeting.

The primary objective of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC") is to
identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down including remuneration payable to
the senior management, recommend to the Board their appointment and carry out
evaluation of every director's performance.

34. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
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The Stakeholder relationship Committee comprised the following members as on

31.03.2025:
Number Number
;I; Name of Members Designation gf;?f;:{] l(\);ee ting l(\);ee ting
Entitled Attended
1 Mr. Vinodkumar Independent Chairman 1 1
" | Bhanwer Singh Director
2 Ms. Jasmin Jaykumar | Independent Member 1 1
" [ Doshi Director
3 Mr, Rishabh Sunil Whole Time Member 1 1
" | Singhi Director
Mr. Varun Managing Member 1 1
4. [ ManojKkumar Jain Director

During the financial year 2024-25, the members of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee

met once on 27.07.2024. Requisite quorum was present during the meeting.

The Committee looks into the grievances of the Shareholders related to transfer of shares,
payment of dividend and non-receipt of annual report and recommends measure for

expeditious and effective investor service.

The Company has duly appointed Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (R&T Agent) for
servicing the shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form. All requests for
dematerialization of shares are likewise processed and confirmations thereof are
communicated to the investors within the prescribed time. There were no complaints
received during the year ended 315t March 2025.

A STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER

SUB-SECTION (6) OF SECTION 149:

The following Directors as on 315t March, 2025, are Independent in terms of Section 149(6)

of the Companies Act, 2013.

Mr. Vivek Dinesh Nathwani

appointed w.e.f. 03.05.2024

Ms, Jasmin jay Kumar Doshi

appointed w.e.f, 03.05.2024

Mr. Vinod Kumar bhanwer Singh

appointed w.e.f. 03.05.2024

The Company has received requisite declarations/ confirmations from all the above

Directors confirming their independence.
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Further, in the opinion of the Board the independent directors possess requisite expertise,
experience and integrity.

36. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 164(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

The Company has received the disclosure in Form DIR-8 from its Directors being appointed
or re-appointed and has noted that none of the Directors are disqualified under Section
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

37. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE:

38.

39.

The Company has taken various measures for obtain commitment by all board members to
the process of performance evaluation by means of set performance criteria, plan the
process and gather the information, discuss and interpret the data, develop a plan of
follow-up; identify areas for change and set goals for effective performance of the board
members & individual Director also. After performance evaluation, the board has view that
the performance of Board and Individual board member is satisfactory.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY:

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, there have been no material changes or
commitments affecting the financial position of the Company, except for the following:

The Company has initiated the process of raising capital through an Initial Public Offering
(IPO) and, in this regard, has been actively engaged in various preparatory activities,
including liaising with the stock exchange(s) and other regulatory authorities.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There is significant material orders passed by the Office of Regional director and Registrar
of Companies, Gujarat after the end of financial year 31st March 2025, pursuant to
Compounding/ Adjudication Application made by the company in order to rectify /make
good certain non-compliances made in past by the company however, the same had not
impacted the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. The brief
detail of order passed by regulatory authority is given below: -

;‘; Order ID Particulars Status

1. | RD(NWR)/441/Sec.185/2025/894 Order Passed by | Penalty levied on
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Regional Director for
Compounding
Application made u/s
441 and 185 of
Companies Act, 2013

company and
Officer in Default
has been duly
paid by company

Order Passed by
Registrar of Companies
for Adjudication
Application made u/s
454 of Companies Act,
2013 for violation of
section 172 of act.

PO/ADJ/06-2025/AD/00436/1446 to
1448

Penalty levied on
company and
Officer in Default

has been duly
paid by company

Order Passed by
Registrar of Companies
for Adjudication
Application made u/s
454 of Companies Act,
2013 for violation of
section 172 of act.

PO/AD)/06-2025/AD/00436/1449 to
1451

Penalty levied on
company and
Officer in Default
has been duly
paid by company

PO/AD]/06-2025/AD/00436/1443 to | Order Passed by
1455 Registrar of Companies
for Adjudication
Application made u/s
454 of Companies Act,
2013 for violation of
section 172 of act

Penalty levied on
company and
Officer in Default
has been duly
paid by company

PO/AD)/06-2025/AD/00436/1452 to | Order Passed by
1454 Registrar of Companies
for Adjudication
Application made u/s
454 of Companies Act,
2013 for violation of
section 178(8) of act

Penalty levied on
company and
Officer in Default
has been duly
paid by company

PO/AD]/06-2025/AD/00436/1455 to | Order Passed by
1457 Registrar of Companies
for Adjudication
Application made u/s
454 of Companies Act,
2013 for violation of

Penalty levied on
company and
Officer in Default
has been duly
paid by company

section 178(8) of act
PO/AD]/06-2025/AD/00436/1480 to | Order Passed by | Penalty levied on
1483 Registrar of Companies | company and
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for Adjudication
Application made u/s
454 of Companies Act,
2013 for violation of
section 203 (5) of act

Officer in Default
has been duly
paid by company

40. COMPLIANCE OF THE PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961

41.

The company is committed to ensure a safe, inclusive and supportive workplace for women
employees. There has been no incident of granting any maternity benefit as per Maternity
Benefit Act, 1961 during the financial year under review.

The company also ensure that no discrimination is made in recruitment or service

condition on the grounds of maternity.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and

members during the year under review. The Directors also wish to place on record their

deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the Company’s executives, staff

and workers.

For and on behalf of the Board
VMS TMT LIMITED
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Varun Manocjkumar Jain
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 03502561

Date: 01.09.2025
Place: Bhayla
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Annexurel
FORM NO. AOC -2
FY 2024-25

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or
transactions’

Date of approval by the Board

g)

Amount paid as advances, if any

h)

Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting
as required under first proviso to section 188

NA

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm'’s length basis.

SL.
No

Particulars

Details

)

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship VMS Industries

Limited

b)

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Taking Property on
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rent

c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 01.04.2024 to
29.03.2025

d) [ Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or [ As per Rent Agreement
transaction including the value, if any

e) | Date of approval by the Board 22.07.2024

f) | Amount paid as advances, if any -

SL. Particulars Details
No
a) | Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nidheeshwaramm
Ship Recyclers LLP
b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Sales and Purchase of
Goods
c) | Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction 2024-25
d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or | Asapproved by Board
transaction including the value, if any
e) | Date of approval by the Board 05.04.2024
f) | Amount paid as advances, if any -

For and on behalf of the Board
VMS TMT LIMITED

Varun Manojkumar Jain
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 03502561

Date: 01.09.2025
Place: Bhayla
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Annexure 11
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING ON 31/03/2025

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
The policy aims to contribute towards sustainable development of the society and
environment to make planet a better place for future generations. The philosophy of
CSR is imbibed in our business activities and social initiatives taken in the local area.
The CSR Policy is formulated in accordance with the provisions of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and other applicable laws to the
company.

Content of Policy:
Focus Areas:

While the company may undertake CSR activities in any areas listed under Schedule
VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the focus areas of CSR activities should be on the
following aspects:

(i) Health Camps

(ii) Environment protection

(iii) Rain Water Harvesting

(iv) Rural Transformation/Development
(v) Safe Drinking Water

(vi) Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing
vocation skills

(vii) Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels
for women and orphans.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
As the Company fall under the criteria mentioned in the provision of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014, however as per sub-section 9 of section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 where the amount to be spent by a company under sub-section (5) of
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Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the
requirement for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall
not be applicable and the functions of such Committee provided under this section
shall, in such cases, be discharged by the Board of Directors of such company.

In the financial year 2024-25 the CSR amount to be spent by the Company is below
Rs. 50 lakhs, however the Company has voluntarily constituted the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee.

The Board has constituted the CSR committee on 037 May, 2024 with following

members:
Name of Member | Designation in Company Designation in committee
Varun Jain Managing Director Chairman
Rishabh Singhi Whole Time Director Member
Vinodkumar Singh | Independent Director Member

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and
CSR Projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the
company:

The web-Link were Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed are given as under: -

Web-link for policy: https://vmstmt.com/policies/
Web Link for CSR Projects: https://vmstmt.com/policies/

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of
CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not
Applicable

5. (a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135: Rs.
11,21,23,410/-

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of
section 135: Rs. 22,42,468.

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: Not Applicable
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(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, ifany: - Rs. 7,486/-
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c])-(d)]: Rs. 22,42,468.

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing

Project):
1) |(2) {3) {4) (5) {6) {7) {8)
S. | CSR |Sector in | Proje | Specify the | Amount Amoun | Direct | Ov | Cumulati | Amount
No. | proje | which the | cts or | State and | outlay t spent | expendi | erh | ve spent:
ct or | Project is | progr | district (budget) on the | ture on|ea | expendit | Direct or
activi | covered ams | where project or | project | project | ds | ure upto | through
ty {1) projects or | programs | s or|s or to  the | implementi
identi Local | programs wise progra | progra reporting | ng agency*
fied area | was ms ms. period.
or undertaken
other

1. Provi | Promoting | Local | Ahmedabad | 22,46,000 | 22,46,0 | Indirect | Nil | 22,46,00 | Implementi
ding | education, , Gujarat 00 0 ng agency
Educ | including
ation | special Shri Umiya
education. Education
and

Charitable
Trust

CSR Reg.
No.:
CSRO00327
72

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c]]: Rs. 22,46,000

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

| Total | Amount Unspent (in Rs.) |
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Amount

Spent for | Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund

the to Unspent CSR Account as | specified under Schedule VII as per

Financial | per sub- section (6) of | second proviso to sub-section (5) of

Year (in section 135. section 135.

Rs.) Amount. Date of Name of the | Amount | Date of
transfer. Fund transfer

22,46,000 Not Applicable

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No. | Particular Amount (in
Rs.)
(1) 2) (3)

1. Two percent of average net profit of the company as | 22,42,468
per sub-section (5) of section 135
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 22,46,000
Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 3,532
4, Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs | Nil
or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
5. Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial | Rs. 3,532 (Rs.
Years [(iii)-(iv)] 7,486 in FY
2023-24)

W

2. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding
three Financial Years: Not Applicable

3. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

4. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the
average net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135: Not applicable

For and on behalf of the Board
VMS TMT LIMITED
o

Varun Manojkumar Jain
Chairman & Managing Director
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Date: 01.09.2025
Place: Bhayla
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31T MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

VMS TMT LIMITED,

Survey No 214 Bhayla Village Bhayla,
Near Water Tank Bavla, Bhayla,
Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, 382220

Sir,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by VMS TMT LIMITED, (hereinafter called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives in electronic form using the
Information Technology Tools during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the company has during the audit year covering the year ended on 31st March,
2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Scurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(Not Applicable for the period under review)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable for the period under review)




Umesh Ved & Associates

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable for the period under review)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable for the period under review)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018;(Not Applicable for the period under review)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
equity) Regulations, 2021;(Not Applicable for the period under review)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (Not Applicable for the period under review)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;(Not
Applicable for the period under review)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2021; (Not Applicable for the period under review)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not Applicable for the period under review)

(vi) We have relied on the representation made by the Company, its Officers and on the
reports given by designated professionals for systems and processes formed by the
Company to monitor and ensure compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

The list of major head / groups of Acts, Laws and Regulations as applicable to the Company is
as under:
i. Factories Act, 1948 (“Factories Act”)
ii. Legal Metrology Act, 2009 (“LM Act”)
iii. The Electricity Act, 2003, (“Electricity Act”) and The Electricity Rules, 2005 (“Electricity
Rules”)
iv. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986, as amended (“EPA”) and the Environment
(Protection) Rules, 1986
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges read with
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. (Not Applicable for the period under review)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that:
The company on its conversion to a public limited company constituted the board of directors

as contemplated in composition required under the companies act 2013, with effect from 34
May,2024.

There were changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under
review.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions in the Board are carried through, while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

; D@uﬂ» AN
FCS 4411 \v»

Place: Ahmedabad CP 2924 Umesh Ved

Date: 01stSeptember, 2025 Umesh Ved& Associates
Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 4411 C.P. No.: 2924
Peer review No.: 6564/2025
UDIN: F004411G001147993
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To,

The Members,

VMS TMT LIMITED,

Survey No 214 Bhayla Village Bhayla,
Near Water Tank Bavla, Bhayla,
Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, 382220

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the company.

Umesh Ved

Umesh Ved& Associates
Company Secretaries

FCS No.: 4411 C.P. No.: 2924
Peer review No.: 6564/2025
UDIN: FO04411G001147993

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 01stSeptember,2025

Skksk
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- SURESH CHANDRA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Branch : 303, Investrent House, 3rd Floor, Opp. Gandhigram Railway Station, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380 006.
Contact No. : 9974534855 Email : cassnanwal@gmail.com

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of VMS TMT Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of VMS TMT limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 315 March 2025, the statement of profit and
loss, including statement of other comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 315 March 2025, and profit {including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
- We-conducted-our-audit- of the-financial statements-in-accordance with-the Standards.on.Auditing —-

(SAs) specified under Section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described_in_the_Auditor’s Responsibilities_for_the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone Ind
AS financial statements and our auditor’s report therean.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we

Head Office : 106-112B, Devika Tower, 6, Nehru Place, New Dethi - 110019,
Phone : 011-47069670, 47023959 E-Mail : sca_ca_co@yahoo.com



canclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisians of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s
ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and rmaintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3}i) of the Act, we




are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the entity has adeguate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poiicies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern,

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements for the financial year ended
March 31%, 2025 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the
order.

2, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
aur knowledge and belief were necessary far the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

ik



(c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended.

(e} on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
315t March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”; and

{g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31°* March, 2025 has
been paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our epinion and t¢ the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. As informed by the management, that there are no pending litigations which
impacts on its financial position.

ii.  The Company is not required to make provision, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts including derivative contracts as the company did not
have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There was no amount which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

V. (i) The management has represented that, to the hest of its knowledge and
belief, other than disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds} by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {(“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whelher, direclly or indireclly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
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PLACE: AHMEDABAD LEUALVE,
20/08/2025 ' Partner

DATE:

vi.

on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(i) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii)
contain any material mis-statement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, therefore
the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the company.

Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
hooks of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1,
2023, and accordingly, as per Rule 11{(g) of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 company has not enabled feature of Audit trail in its accounting
software as on March 31, 2025,

FOR, SURESH CHANDRA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
) ¢ %, Firm Reg. No. 001359N

< charerep \ ) ~ E

\i;.‘iuccoumnmsﬂ,{_ — =

e

[CA. Shyamsunder Nanwal]

UDIN: 25128896BMIAMV7064 M. No. 128896



Annexure - B to Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statement of
the VMS TMT Limited {“the Company”}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VMS TMT Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria estahlished by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India {'ICAI'}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting hased on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrels Over-Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial .controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting with reference to these financial statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of IND AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

{3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind

AS financial statements.
tnherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the passibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

———internal-financial-contrel-everfinancial-reporting-may-become-inadequate-because-of-changesin

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements
were operating effectively as at 31% March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR, SURESH CHANDRA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
-\ Firm Reg. No. 001359N

PLACE: AHMEDABAD ST [CA. Shyamsunder Nanwal)
DATE: 20/08/2025 Partner
UDIN: 25128896BMIAMV7064 M. No. 128896



Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph 1 our report of even date:

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of VMS TMT
Limited on the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 March, 2025, we report

that:

(i) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d}

{ii} (a)

(b}

(A) The Company has maintained the proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Capital work in progress,
Investment Properties and relevant details of Right-of-use asset).

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible asset.

The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a program of verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the
fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to
us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

With respect to immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company} disclosed in the
Financial Statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment, according to information
and explanations given to us and based on verification of the registered sale deed/ Transfer
deed/ Conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of such immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company as at Balance Sheet date, except for
leasehold land as disclosed in Note 2b to the Financial Statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated during the
year or are pending against the Company as at 31 March, 2025 for holding any benami
property under Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules
made thereunder.

The inventories were physically verified by the management during the year at reasonable
intervals. In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, the
coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate having
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10%
or more in aggregate of each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with the books of accounts.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
Crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has
filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the books
of account other than those as set out below.
(Rs. in Crores)

Name of Aggregate Nature of Quarter | Amount Amount as | Differenc | Reas
the Bank working current ended disclosed as per books | ¢ ons
_capital assets per quarterly | of account for |

J



limits offered as returns/statem differ |
_ sanctioned | securities | ents ence
Stock: 9,817.85 (129.59) b
9.688.26
g?nic Tune Debtors: 1,456.73 0.00
ICICI 7600 Lacs | ReferNote | 44 1,426,713 —
Befow Creditors: 1,221.34 0.57 #
Bank & 2024
SVC Bank 122191 -
Sales: 22,015.43 - -
| 22.015.43
Stock: 10,702.15 | (56.04) $
10,640.11
gf;ic Septem | DELIOTS: 98.27 0.11 #
ICICI 7600 Lacs | ReferNote || sy | 28.38 .
Below Creditors: (301 .46) (295.00) 1
Bank & 2024
SVC Bank (56.46)
Sales: 14,146.52 - -
— 14,146.52
Stock: 13,345.45 (6.42}) W
13.339.03
Eﬁf Decern | Debtors: 270025 | 18.04 | #
i Refer Note 2718.29
1CICI 7600 Lacs ber 31, ; e
Below Creditors: 3536.06 (608,53) | 2
Bank & 2024 -
SVC Bank 202753 e
Sales: 19,378.81
B 19,378.81
Stock: 15,194.68 321.32 ke
15.516.00 B _
HDFC Debtors: 2273.83 (1042.83) | #
Bank, ) March .
1CICT 7600 Lacs Refer Note 31 1,231.00
Below ! Creditors: 4654 47 (2195.47) | §
Bank & 2025
SVC Bank L 2,452.00 —
Sales: 20808.75 0.75 #
b 20.808.00 B
Remarks:

# Rectification of entries in books on account of auditing

** The minor increase in the Valuation of stock is primarily on account of allocation of
expense to costing of finished goods
$ Theincrease in the Valuation of stock is primarily on account of allocation of expense

to costing of finished goods
1. The Lower reporting of Creditors in the Stock statement is primarily on account of

Netting of Fixed depaosits amounting to Rs.50.00 Lacs provided for issuance of letter
of credit as per the terms of Banks and on account of audit, the advance of Rs.245.00
Lacs was netted of with Loan taekn from the party on account of Wrong Entry in the
books

The Lower reporting of Creditors in the Stock statement is primarily on account of
Netting of Fixed deposits amounting to Rs.606.91 Lacs provided for issuance of letter
of credit as per the Terms of Banks.

'The Lower reporting of Creditors in the Stock statement is primarily on account of
Netting of Fixed deposits amounting to Rs.787.50 Lacs provided for issuance of letter
of credit as per the Terms of Banks.

'Fuilhier, Credilorts for Expense has been inculded in the Sundry Credltors of FS and
the same is not included in the Caclculation of Drawing Power.

%



(i)

(iv}

(v)

(vi}

{wvii)

{viii)

(a)

{b)

Note:

Nature of current assets offered as securities:

HDFC Bank: First Pari Passu charge on stocks and receivables.
SVC Bank: First Pari Passu charge on stock and books debts.
ICICI Bank: First Pari Passu charge on stocks and receivables.

Debtors have been reduced by the amount of credit balance in the debtor’s group i.e. by the
advance received from debtors, and includes the balance of advance given to suppliers of
goods.

Creditors refers to creditors for goods.

During the year, the company has not made investment, provided any guarantee, or security
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Hence, clause 3{ifi}(a} to 3(iii){f} is not
applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans

and investments made,

The company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which is deemed to be deposit.
Hence, reporting under clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable,

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cast Records and Audit) Rules,
2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed cosl records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,
however, not made detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete,

Based on the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payahble in
respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March
2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, statutory dues relation to Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employee
State Insurance, Income Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute as at 31 March, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the INR (In Lacs) Period to which Forum where
Statue Dues amount relates dispute is pending
Goads and Goods and 64,68 FY 2020-21 Additional
Service Tax Act, Service Tax Commissioner{ap
2017 peals) of Goods

| and Service Tax

Based on the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed during the year in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961.




{ix)

{x)

{xi}

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

{xv)

(a)

(b}

{c)

{d)

(e)

(f)

{a)

(b)

(b)

(c)

(a)
(b}

Based on the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings
to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank of financial
institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, prima facie,
not been used during the vear for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associate firm.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its associate firm.

The company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instrumentis} during the year and hence clause 3(x){a} of the QOrder is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the balance sheet, the Company has made preferential allotment or private placement of
shares. The requirements of Secticn 42 and Section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, have
been complied with, and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were raised.

During the course of our examination of the hooks and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given Lo us, no lraud by Lhe Company and no malerial fraud on
the Company has bheen notices or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub section (12)
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and up to the date of this report.

According to the information and explanations given to us no whistle-blower complaints, if
any, received during the year by the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and hased on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

Woe have considered the Internal Audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the year
under audit, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xv) of the Order is not

applicable.



(xvi)  (a)

{b)
(c)

(xvii)

{xeviii}

(xix)

(xx)  (a)

{xxi)

In our opinion the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under clause 3{xvi)(a), (b) and {c) of the
Order is not applicable.

The company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{xvi){b) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit,
there is no core investment company within the group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3{xvi) {d)
of the Order is not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash loses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding year.

There has not been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the previous
year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
repeort indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, the company has fully spent the required amount toward
Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects. Hence the
provisions of paragraph 3{xx) {b) of the Order are not applicable.

There are no Companies of which reports are included in the consolidated financial
statements. Hence, reporting under clauses 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

FOR, SURESH CHANDRA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants P T

Firm Reg.-Ng 0013%?N P

[CA SHYANMISUNDER NANWALNY

Partner

B
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Date: 20/08/2025

M. No. 128896 o Place: Ahmedabad
UDIN: 25128896BMIAMV7064



Deaee @ 2000872025

VMS TMT LIMITED
Statenend of Assets and Linbilitics
— . (Rs In Lakhs)
s " As al
Rurticutars B Hokes 3t March . 2025 31st March. 2024
ASSETS
Non-Cmvrenl Assels
{a) Propery, Plant and Equipment 2n 17,419 63 13400
by Right of Use Asses 28 2042 1378
() Capital Work-In-Progress 2b 503 5,108 42
(d} Ciher Iniangible Assels 2a 057 08l
(€} Financial Asses
{1} Other Financial Assels 3 55630 506 |2
N Oer Non-Cwirenl Assels 4 5339 | 117552
Total Non-Currenl Assels 18.065.33 14,225.66
Curvent Assets
() Iventories 5 13,194 68 10,936 62
(L} Financial Assels
{iy  Trade Recervables [ 2450 45 1,572 7%
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalenis 7 82 90 505 17
{ih) Bank balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents TA 1,012 50 =
{iv)y Other Finaneial Assels § 11244 000
(¢) Curremt Tax Assets [MNel) o = -
(d} Other Current Assets 10 4231 36 320 16
Tadal Correnl Assels 23,139,33 14,197,533
Assels ilivectly sssociated wirh asscis clussificd 55 beld Tor Sale 40 1.6% -
Total Assels 41.206.34 | 2842209
EQUITY AND LIABILITTES
Emqusiy
(a) Equily Share Capital 11 1,463 12 1333 7]
(b} Ciher Equity 12 385583 131765
Tatal Lquity 131900 4.651.26
Linbilities
Non-Current Linbilitics
{8} Financial Linbilities
() Bonewmgs 13 [2,439 90 1045318
fia) Leasze linbilities 14 2042 s
(b} Provisions 15 2974 2397
{¢} Defened Tax Liabililies {Mel} 16 676 54 32807
‘Total Mon-Curvent Linhilities 13,22%.65 11,0358.02
Corrent Liabilities
3 cial Linbilitivs
Dorowmes 7 15,031 66 9,332 82
I_ease liabilies I 338 oz
Trade Payables 5]
- Toral sutstandmg dues of micio enterprises and small entenpises 6470 33755
- Total ! Jing dues of ciedilors oiher than micio entenprises il 40447 976 38
sonall enlerprises
Gy Other Finaw Liabwlities 1% TraG @1327
{b) Other Cuirent Liabilities 20 345 63 33223
fe} Provisions (1) S04 §3 14553
{d) Cunrent Tax Laibililies {(Nel) 9 179011 291 97
TFotd Curvend Linbilities 20,661,110 12.733.61
Total Liabitities 33.886.75 23.771.63
Liabilities directly assacialed with assels classilfied as helid for Safy 40 Q.50 B
) Toral Eguity onid Linbilities _ AL206.34 28.422.90
Summmary of Notesof sccountisg polieiss and Estinpies n
See accompanying nates forming pant of the Fmancial Sitements
As per our report aliached of even dale
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VYMS TMT LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss.
(Rs: 1n Lakhs exeep EPS)

Particulars Notes Far the period emded For the year ended
Mst March, 2025 It Mareh, 2024

Continuing Operalions — B

Lncome

Revenue fiom Operations 21 17,019.10 £7.295.77

Chet Income 22 121.66 21,09

Toial Income T7,140.76 87,16.86

Expenses

Cosl of Matetials Consumed 23 5278110 7502348

Mnchase of naded goods 24 12,415 76 2,200.37

Changes 1o hiveniores 25 (2,042,04) (411.99)

Employes Benelit Expenses 26 1,322.37 1,024.17

Finamce Costs 27 1,984.76 1,819.23

Deprectation and Amontisalion Expenses 23 GB0 55 39437

Other Cxpenses 20 T.080 38 537243

Toial Expenses 75,132.38 45,422.58

ProfitiLoss Before exceptionad ilems and s From Coatinwing Crperatinon 2,008.38 1,894.28

Exceptional items - =

Profii Loss) before (ax for the Peviod fvear From Continuing Operalion 2,008,538 1,894.28

Tax Expense

Cwrremt Tax 30 31318 379 64

Deferred Tax 14346 194,63

Total Tax Expense A6 57427

Profiti{Loss) alter tax for the Pevind { year From Continning Operation {A} Toial A 154175 a0 |

Discontinned Operntion 40

Profiid Loss From Discontied Operation Belore lax {68.15)

Eatlier’s Tax Expenses s B {7.69)

Prafit/ Loss Feoo Disenntinved Opevation {R) (6H8.15) F.04

Profitf{Loss) afler tax fov the Peviod 7 year (AT + (1) 1.473.60 1, 127.69

Oiher Comprehensive Income

liews (hat will not be reclassificd o Frof o Loss

- Remeasmement of the Delned Benelit Plans §71 R 1]

Tatal Oiher Comprebensive Income Tor the year {(Nel of Tax) Futal B 8.7 9,88

Total Comprehensive Incame for the year Total {A+B) 1,482.31 1.337.58

Earnings Per Shave (EPS)Y From Cantinuing Operalions {in?} k1]

(Face Yalued 10 Por Share)

Gasic Carminpgs per Share 4 49 393

Diluted Earnings per Share 449 393

Earnings Pere Shace (PS5} From Discontinned Qperaiions {in) 31

iFace ¥alueX 10 Per Share)

Basic Earnings per Share (0.20)

Dilwed Eavnings pev Share (020

Earwings Per Share (EPS) Frim Cantinuing anil Disconlinued Operations {ind} 31

(Face ValueT 10 Per Shave)

Basic Eamings per Share 429 393

Driluced Emnings pev Shave 429 3193
y of Materind aceounting polivies and Estimates = E]

See peeotpinying notes foniog part of the Finamcial Stalements
As per our report attached of even date
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¥YMS TMT LIMITED

Statement of Chaoges in Equity For the peviod ended 31se March, 2825

(Al amount are T in Lacs unless olberwise staled)

A, Equity Share Capital {Refer Nole No. [1)

Particulars Mo, of Shares Antawnt
Changes in Equity Share Capilal due to prigr period enois = -
Balance al the 015 Apil, 2023 1,26,12,886 1,261.29
Changes in equily share capital during the year
Issue of shares during the vem 7.24.238 72 42
Balance as a1 31st March, 2024 1,.33.37.124 1,333.71
Changes in Equity Share Capilal due to prior period emors - -
Balance at the 2Lst Apnl, 2024 1,33,37,124 1,333.71
Changes in equily share capital during the year :
Issne of shares during the yem 2,12.94.086 212941
Balance as nd 31si March, 2025 3.46,31,210 3,463,12
B, Other Equity (Refer Mote Mo, 12}
Balance as at Ist April, 2013 51633 1,314.36 11.78 1,842.47
Change in aceomnting policy o prioc period erois 11.78 (11.78) 3
Profit for the yeal - 1,327.69 - 1,327 09
Other comptehensive income for the yea - - o438 038
Secwities premivm on fesh issue of shaies 137.61 - - 137.61
Balance ns at J0s1 Mareh, 2024 453.91 2.653.84 9.88 33765
Balance as ol Lst April, 2024 633,93 2,653.84 9.88 331765
Profit for the yem 1,473.60 - 1,473 00
Less: Short Provision for Earlier Yea E = - -
Oler comprehensive income for the Period / year - = 8§71 87
Bonus Issue (,118.13) (914.09) . (2,032 22)
Secwilies premium on fiesh issue of shies 1088 14 - - 1.ORS 14
Balance ns at 31st March, 2025 623.94 3.213.35 18.59 185588

See accompanying noles forming paet of the Financial Staements

As per our repord altached of even dale

Chariered Accoutanls

Firm Reg. No. 001 359N o
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Rishabh Singhi
Whole tine Directon
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Chief Financial Officer
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Statemend of Cash Flows

Particilars

VMS TMT LIMITED

1.-\|_I o

For the perviod ended
F1st Maweh, 2025

e 30 e tnless otherwise stie

For the year emded
Fst Mareh, 2024

A Cash Mow from opernling activilies

Profuf{Loss) before 1ax for the period

Conlinuing Qpervation

Dhizcontinued Operalion {refer Nole no 40}

I*rofin ¢ {Loss) before tax including discominned opevations

Adpustments for:
- For Continning Operation
Depreciation / Amortisation
Interest Income
Share of Company in (Profity Loss in Firm
Expecied Credit Loss Allowonce
U lised Foreign Exchange Difference
Finance Cosl
Preliminary Expenses Written OIF
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant & Equipmen
Change in Reserves
Earlier year mcome tax adjusimeni
~For Disconlinned Operntion (reler Nole - 40)
Operating profit belore working capital changes

Clianges in Working Capital:
- For Conlinulng Operntion
(Inerense} £ Deerense n Assels :
Trade Receivables
Olber finunesal assels
Ciher Curvent Assels
Inventolies
Incrense / (Deerense) in Linbilities ©
Onher Financial Liabilities
Oiher babilivies
Trade Payables
Provisions

“For Discontinnet Operation {refer Mole - 43)
Cosh gemeratedf{wsed) [ operations

[ienime taxes paid {MNel of Relund}
Net cash generated/{used) lrom opeenting activities {A)

B. Cash Mow lrom investing activities
« For Continuing Operation

Puichase of Property, Plant and Cquipment tincluding CWIIF}
Proceeds from the sate of Fropetly , plant and Equipnent
wargin Money Deposied wih bank {Nei)

Qiher Finanecial Assel (Non Curienl)

Interest Income

Share of Company m (Profn)f Loss in Firm

Advance for Capital Goods (MNet}

-For Disconlimmed Operation (refer Note - 40)
Mot eash generaled!(nsed) in invesiing activilies {B}

C. Cash Now from Minancing aclivities
For Comtinwing Operation

Proceeds fram lssue of Equily Shares
Proceeds (rom Cureent Borrowings
Repayment of Curcent Borrowings
Proceeds fliom Non - Coirent Borrowings
Repayment of Moo - Current Barrewings
Payment of Lease Liability

Prepaid IPC Expenses

Finance Cosl

2,008 18 1,894 23
(68 15} -
1,940.24 1,894.28
630,53 394 37
{121 .66) (21 0%
125.6]
(3712) =
1,984 76 181923
- 07s
0%
871 938
769
4,561.82 410512
(1,052 28) (669 7])
(62 44) (50 00y
(3,402 200 563 27
(4,258 05} {330 2%)
(83581 3823
{486 55) 62 17
2,594 60 11,573 26)
724 83 165 24
(6,477.01} (367.24)
{00} -
{1,917.18) 3,737.85
(431 13) (1812
(2,343.32) 3,719.73
(3,634 69) (4,999 40)
4) 36
(1.03533) 1412 59y
(27 43) 2698
121 66 2109
1,073 25 76 56
{5.460.67) (4.087.346)
- (546067 {4987.36)
1,185 33 20003
1247517 1,281 43
(7,076 13) {243 (10)
5,177 26 15,341 80
{2,733 61} (12,363 90)
(612) (7 65)
48 38 (43 83)
(1,981 60) (1,815 00
7,082 12 1,854 32




YME TMT LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flows
-Fur Discontinwed Operation (refer Note - 48}

Net cash generared/{nsed) in financing nclivities (C)
Netinevense f (decrense) in cash aod eash equival euls {A+B+C)

Cush and cash equivalenis at the beginming of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalenis as a1 End of the Yeu

Cash and Cash Equivalent Inelndes
Cash in hand
Balances with Banks
=In Current Accounts
Fixed Deposils (wiih origingl maturity less than three months)
il Cash and Cash Equivalents

7,089, |2- i Tm
{719.37) 53719
308.77 221.58
$8.90 808.77
17 44 983
7146 798 94
$3.90 308.17

Notes io Cash Flow Stadeniend:

1, Discloswre s pere Ind AS 7 Siatement of Cash Flows:

The Ind AS 7 1equire enliltes 1o provide disclosure of changes in their habilities arising fiom i

changes (such as foreign exchange gains o losses) In this 1egards the Company has provided 1he Following informalion

Changaes iw Nabilites avising feont Goancing netivitiey

aclivities, |

Y

ansing from ¢ash Mlows and non-cash

(AL nmonnl wee Tin Lacs nnless ol leerwise siitvd)

Purticalars As ol 1st April, 2024 Cash Flows Others - .\I-\a #l
Long-lerm Boriowings Including Current Matuities 12,160 57 (2733 60) T 57470 T 14,600 66
Lease Liability . 32 480 512y 274 2942
Total 12,193.37 (2.739.731 S077.44 14.631.0§
= ) . N . - As af
Punticilars As ar Ist April, 2023 Cash Flows Others 31s1 March. 1024
Longetenm Horrowings Including Cunent Matwilies 9403 2 {12,363 90) 15,620 56 1210057
Lemse Linbility - 17.05) 4045 1230
Lol D.400.9¢ (12:871.55) 1500101 12.1%3.37

2 The Swalement of Cazh Flows has been prepancd under Lthe Inditect metliod as sel oul in Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cosh Flows”

As prev our report atiached of even daie
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
21% March, 2025

1. Corporate Information

VMS TMT Limited is a Public Limited Company, incorporated in India under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, having its registered office at Survey No 214 Bhayla Village, Near Water Tank Bavla, Bhayla,
Ahmedabad, Bavla, Gujarat, India - 382220. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of
TMT Bars and Steel ltems.

Material accounting policies:

11

(i}

(i)

1.2

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
{hereinafter referred te as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {"Act’) read with of the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time and other accounting principal generally accepted in India.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements prepared and presented under the historical cost convention with the
exception of certain assets and liabilities that are reguired to he carried at fair value by IND AS. The fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between the market participants at the measurement date,

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's
functional currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest rupees, unless otherwise indicated.

Classification of Assets, current and non-current.
The assets or lfahility is classified as current, if it satisfies the any of the following condition.

{i}  The assets / Liahility expected to be realised or paid in the company’s normal operating cycle.
{ii} The assets are intended for sales or consumption,

{iii) The assets / liability held for the purpose of trade or business

{iv) The Assets / liability is expected to be realised/ settled within 12 months after reporting

period.
(v} The assets are cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to

settle a liability for at least 12 months after reporting date.
{vi) In case of liahility, the company does not have an unconditional right to deter settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date,

All other assets or liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred Assets and Deferred Liability are
classified as current assets or liahility respectively.

For the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the company has
ascertained its normal operating cycle as 12 months. This is based on nature of the business and the
time between the acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realisation in cash or
cash equivalents.



1.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

1.

Property, Plant and Equipment.
Recognition and measurement:
Freehold land is carried at cost,

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production orfand supply of goods are stated in the
balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and sale or disposal {if any).

Cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price after deducting
any trade discounts and rebates and further includes any directiy attributable costs of bringing the
assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct
labour, allocation of directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in
bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which i is located. The costs of testing whether the asset 1s
functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling items produced while bringing the
asset to that location and condition are also added to the cost of self-constructed assets.

If significant parts of an item of Property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components} of property, plant and equipment.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statements
of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent-costs-are- included- in the-asset’s-carrying -amount -or-recognised as a separate-asset;-as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset |s derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Intangible Assets

Recognition and measurement:

Intangible asset purchased are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment, if any and are amortized as per the useful life on written down value basis, as per the rates
specified in the Companies Act, 2013.

Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated

with the expenditure will flow to the company.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided using straight line method {5LM} as specified schedule 1l of the companies Act
2013. Depreciation on assets acquired / disposed-off during the vear if any, is provided on pro-rata basis
with reference to the date of addition / disposal. The estimated useful lives of assets are as under:

Class of assets Useful Life
__ Freehold Land Non-Depreciable
Building B 30 Years
Plant & Machinery 20 Years
| Electrification 10 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years -
D



Office Equipment 5 Years
Vehicles B | 8Years
| Computers 3 Years
Intangible Asset | 6Years

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual vailues and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Capital work in process
Unallocated expenditures in Capital Work in Progress {CWIP) refer to costs incurred during the

construction or development of an asset that are not yet assigned to a specific asset. Such expenditures
may include overheads, related expenses, or preliminary project costs.

Unallocated expenditures in CWIP are treated as part of the cost of an asset until it is ready for intended
use, Costs that cannot he directly attributed to specific assets are accumulated in CWIP and allocated

when the assets are completed and become operational.

Capital Advances

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as capital advances under “other non-current assets”

Inventories

Inventories of Raw Materials and Stores and spares parts are stated at Cost, Work-in-Progress, Finished
Goods, and Purchase in stock - Traded Goods Stock-in-trade and Coal are stated ‘at cost or net realisable
value, whichever is lower’. Mill Scale /Waste / Scrap are valued at net realisable value, Cost comprises all
cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost formulae used are ‘First-in-First-out. ‘Specific identification’, as applicable.
Due allowance is estimated and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever necessary.

Segment Reporting

Based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by business segments. The Managing Director {MD) has been identified as CODM.,

The Company has evaluated the requirements of Ind AS 108 and determined that it does not have any
distinct segments that meet the criteria for separate disclosure. As a result, segment reporting is not

applicable.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at amortised cost,
Any difference between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the pericd of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use, capitalised as part of cost of asset.
The borrowing costs includes interest and transaction cost that a company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of the funds. Uther interest and horrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

y A



Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
1. A present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probahle that an outflow of
resources will he required to settle the obligation;
2. Apresent obligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is possible;
3. A possible obligation arising from the past events, unless the probability of cutflow of resources is
remote,

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each halance sheet date,

Revenue recognition

(it Revenue From Operations
The specific recognition criteria from various steam of revenue are described as under:

Sales of Goods:
The five step model of Ind AS 115 - 'Revenue from Contracts from Customers' is used to determine

whether revenue should be recognised at a point in time or over time, and at what amount is as below:

Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer

-Step2:-Identify the-parformance-obligations-in-the contract—--- - - - - -
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers In an
amount that reflects the consideration which the company expects to receive in exchange for those
products and which coincides with the dispatch of goods.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts,
price concessions and incentives, if any. Revenue also excludes goods and service tax {GST) collected
from customers, since GST not received by the company on its own account. Rather, it is collected tax on
value added to the commodity/services by the seller, on behalf of the government and, therefore, these
are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. Revenue
from the sale of goods is net of returns. The contracts related to product sales include cnly one
perfarmance abligation, which is to deliver products to customers based on purchase orders received.
This is determined basis when physical possession, legal title and risks and rewards of ownership of the
products transfer to the customer and the company is entitled to payment.

{ii) OtherIncome:

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal gutstanding amount and at the
effective interest rate applicable, the future cash receipt through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s carrying amount on initial recognition.




a)

b}

10.

Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans
Payments made to a defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund and Family Pension maintained

with Regional Provident Fund Office are charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss as
they fali due.

Defined Benefit Plans

Defined benefit plan

The caompany's liahility towards gratuity to past employees is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method which considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement
and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. Past services are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the period. Actuarial gain and losses are recegnized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense. Obligation is measured at the present value of
estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to market yields at
the Balance Sheet date on Government Securities.

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss in the periods during which the related services
are rendered by employees.

income tax

Current Tax

The incorne tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liahility method on temporary differences arising
hetween the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if,
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and

losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it
relates to itemns recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Lease

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
Is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration, \ \ -



11.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these
short-term and low value leases, the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense in the
statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Right-of Use Assets

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
tiability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset Is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by
the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will he depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the iease liability.

{it} Lease Liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the
lease term at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company
uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a lease agreement beyond the
original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re-measurement of the lease liability with
a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on modification is recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the madifications that increase the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use cne or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with the stand-alone seliing

“price-are-accounted-forasaseparate mew lease: Imoase of leave modifications, discounting rates used far —

measurement of lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted.

Fair value measurement

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obhservable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as foliows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

(i} Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

(i1} Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable;

(iii} Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unchservable

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be remeasured or re- assessed as per The Company's accounting policies. For the
purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liahilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as

explained above.




Financial Instruments

Financial assets (except for trade receivables) and financial liahilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss} are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

{A) Financial assets

ii)

Initial Recognition and measurement :

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement ;
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
a) Financlal assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in
arder to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

b} Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FYTOCI}

Afinancial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other cornprehensive income if both

of the following criteria are met

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c} Financial assets at fair value through profit & loss {FVTPL)
All financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FYTOCI are measured at FYTPL,

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurerment recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each date of halance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss

allowance.

In determining the aliowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Group has used a practical
expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a
provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is
adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing
of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. The application of simplified
approach does not require the Greup to track changes in _credit risk, Rather, it recognises




iili)

(B

—

impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-
month expected credit losses on a forward looking basis. However, if the credit risk on the financial
instruments has increased significantly since the initial recognition, then the Group measures
lifetime ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized under the
head ‘Other Expenses’ in the statement of Profit and Loss. The Balance Sheét presentation for
various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost;
ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e,, as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
Balance Sheet. This allowance reduces the net carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTPL:
Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced
from its value. Change in fair value is taken to the statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instruments measured at FVYTOCI:

Since financial assets are already reflected at Fair Value, impairment allowance is not further
reduced from its value, Group does not have any Purchased or Originated Credit Impaired {POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/origination.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

5 the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

s the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred contro! of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing invelvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liahility are measured on a hasis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Cornpany has retained.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recoghised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. .

it



Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, toans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in

an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payabhles, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
*  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

*  Financial liabilities at amortised cost {!oans and horrowings)

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. Gains and losses are recognised n Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate (EIR} amortisation process. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs In the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade and other payables are recognised at the transaction cost, which is its fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Similarly, interest bearing ioans, trade credits and
barrowings {including bonds) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest

rate method.

Financial liabilities rmeasured at FYTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as FVYTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if these are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss

iii) Derecognition of Financial Liahility

The Company derecagnises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liahility and
the recognition of a new financial liahility. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

12, Use of estimates & Judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurernent
principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make informed judgments, reasonable
assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts reported halances of Assets and Liabilities,
disclosures of contingent Liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of income and expense for the periods presented. Uncertainty about these could result in cutcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in the future
periods. These assumptions and estimates are reviewed periodically based on the most recently
available information. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement
of Profit & Loss in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

J—



13.

14.

15,

16,

In the assessment of the Company, the most significant effects of use of judgments and/or estimates on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements are in respect of the following:

*  Useful lives of property, plant & equipment;

=  Valuation of inventories;

»  Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets / liability {Net); and

= Provisions and Contingencies

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit (PAT) for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the company's earnings per share is the net profit for the period
after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax (if any} thereto for the period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, Right Shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

resources,

Foreigh Currencies

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the

transaction.

Conversion
Foreigh currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are

carried in terms of historical cost denominated in-a foreign currency are repoerted using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other
similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date
when such vaiue was determined.

Exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting monetary items of
Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported
in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they arise
except those arising from investments in non-integral operations.

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee. The Company determines the
functional currency as Indian Rupee on the basis of primary economic environment in which the entity

operates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less {that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value). However, for the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, in addition to above items, any
bank overdrafts / cash credits that are integral part of the company’s cash management, are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow Statements

Statement of Cash flows is being prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in Indian
Accounting Standard — 7 on ‘Statement of Cash flow’, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals, or accruals of past or future operating cash

{



receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash from operating, investing, and financing activities of the Group are segregated.
17. Rounding Off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as
per the requirements of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated.




DISCLOSURE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTFOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2025:

31. Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
A. The details of contingent liabilities outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet:

GST Claim ag_ainst the company

Particulars

For the year ended
MARCH 31, 2025
64.68

B. The details of Capital Commitments as on the date of Balance sheet:

{Rs. In Lacs)

* For the year ended
MARCH 31, 2024
53,37

{Rs. In Lacs}

Particulars

For the year ended
MARCH 31, 2025

For the year ended
MARCH 31, 2024

Estimated amoun

32.

t of contracts remaining to

he executed on capital account and not
| provided for [net of advances)

Related Party Disclosures:

1,897.97

List of related parties with whom transaction have taken place during the year along with nature and volume of

transactions.

A. Related Party Transactions as on 31* March,2025.,

{Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

Key Managerial
Personnel

Relative of Key
Managerial
Personnel/Entities
in which Directors
or relative are
interested

Name of related parties & Nature of For the year For the year
Relation Transaction ended MARCH ended MARCH
31, 2025 31,2024
Mr. Manoikumar Jain, | Shares Allotted 1,788.94 1 - e
Director Remuneration 96.00 76.80
Mr. Risabh Sunil Singhi, Shares Allotted 2,090.57 | 210.03 |
Director Remuneration 48.00 43.20
Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain, | Shares Allotted 1,479.00 -
Director B Remuneration 83.00
Mr. Vikram Patel, CFO Remuneration 8.75 8.53
Mir. Vijay Boliya, CS Remuneration 7.13
Nishchay Consulatancy Service Charges -
o Loan Taken 11,965.00 11,306.00
VMS Industries Limited Loan Repaid 11,444.45 11,855.20
Interest Paid 130.40 238.24
Rent Paid 6.60 6.15
Loan Taken 100.00
Vms Autolink Pyt Ltd Loan Repaid 140.00
Interest Paid 2.14
Nidheeshwaramm Ship Sales 9.14
Recyclers LLP Purchase 13.42
Aditya Ultra Steel Limited | Loan taken 1,100.00 -




B. Related Party Outstanding balances 31* March, 2025.

Particulars

{Rs. In Lacs)

Key Managerial

Personnel

Relative of Key
Managerial

Personnel/Entities
in which Directors

or relative are
interested

Name of related parties & Relation As on MARCH 3? For the year ended
| 2025 MARCH 31, 2024
Mr. Mangjkumar Jain, Director - -
Mr. Risabh Sunil Singhi, Director -
Mr. Varun Manojkumar Jain, Director
Mr. Vikram Patel, CFO 0.66
_Mr. Vijay Boliya, CS ~_|ovo B B
VMS Industries Limited 3,431.89 2,579.02
Aditya Ultra Steel Limited 1,100.00

33. Earnings Per Share:

A,

EP5 from Continuing Operations

Earnings Per Share without considering the Bonus Effect
{Rs. In facs except Number of Equity Shares)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit Available to Equity Shﬂ'e Holders (A} 154175 |  1,327.69
Number of Equity Share at the beginning 1,33,37,124 1,26,12,886
Shares allotted during the year 2,12,94,086 7,24,238
Total Number of Equity Shares outstanding 2,46,31,210 1,33,37,124
Total Weighted Average Equity Shares
outstanding at the end of the year {B} 3,43,52,060 L 1;82n015820
Basic Earnings Per Share {A/B) {In Rs.} 449 | 10.00
Diluted Earnings Per share {In Rs.) 4.49 10.00
Earning Per Share After considering the Bonus Effect
R Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit Avaitable to Equity Share Holders (A) 1,541.75 1,327.69
Nurﬁer of Equity Shﬁe at the beginning 3,36,59,310 3,29,35,072
Shares allotted during the year 9,71,900 7,24,238
Total Number of Equity Shares outstanding 3,46,31,210 3,36,59,310
Total ‘Weighted Average Equity Shares
outstanding at the end of the year {B) 3’43’52’_053 3’35’95’989_
Basic Earnings Per Share (A/B) {Iln Rs.} 4.49 3.95
Diluted Earnings Per share {In Rs.) 4.49 3.95

4 : _—-..f ‘I
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B.

C.

EPS From Discontinued Operations

Earnings Per Share without considering the Bonus Effect

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit Available to Equity Share Holders {A) {68.15)
Number of Equity Share at the beginning 1,33,37,124 |
Shares allotted during the year 2,12,94,086
Total Number of Equity Shares outstanding 3,46,31,210 =
Total Weighted Average Equity Shares -
outstanding at the end of the year {B) 3,43,52,060
Basic Earnings Per Share (A/B) {In Rs.) {0.20) -
Diluted Earnings Per share {in Rs.) {0.20)
Earnings Per Share After considering the Bonus Effect
Particulars R 2024-25 - 2023-24
Profit Avzilable to Equity Share Holders (A) {68.15) =
Number of Equity Share at the beginning 3,36,59,310
Shares allotted during the year 9,71,900 =
Tatal Number of Equity Shares oulstanding 3,46,31,210
Total Weighted Average Equity Shares
outstanding at the end of the year (B} 3,43,52,060
Basic Earnings Per Share {A/B) (InRs.) {0.20)
Diluted Earnings Per share {In Rs.) (0.20} -
EPS From Continuing and Discontinued Operations
Earnings Per Share without considering the Bonus Effect
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit Available to Equity Share Holders (A) 1,473.60 1,327.69
Number of Equity Share at the beginning 1,33,37,124 1,26,12,886
Shares allotted during the year 2,12,94,086 | - 7,24,238
Total Number of Eqully_sﬁees outstanding 3,46,31,210 1,33,37,124
Total Weighted Average Equity Shares
outstanding at the end of the year (B} o 3,43,52,060 1,32,73,803
Basic Earnings Per Share (A/B) {In Rs.) 4,29 10.00
Diluted Earnings Per share {In Rs.) 4,29 10.00
Earnings Per Share After considering the Bonus Effect
Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Profit Available to Equity &are Holderi{e) 1,473.60 1,327.69
Number of Equity Share at the beginning 3,36,59,310 3,29,35,072
Shares allotted during the year 9,71,900 7,24,238
3,46,31,210 3,36,59,310

Total Number of Equity Shares outstanding




34,

Total ‘Weighted Average Equity
outstanding at the end of the year (B)

Shares

3,43,52,060 3,35,95,989

Basic Earnings Per Share {A/B) {In Rs.)

4.29 3.95

Diluted Earnings Per share {In Rs.}

Employee Benefits:

a0 3%

The Company has a defined henefit gratulty plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days’ salary {last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plans.

A,

Expense recognised for Defined Contribution Plan

{Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

PF Contribution of Employer

For the year ended
MARCH 31, 2025

For the year ended
MARCH 31, 2024

3.83

3.48

Expense recognised for Defined Benefit Plan

The Details of significant employee benefits are as follows:

{Rs. In facs}

Particulars For the year ended MARCH For the year ended MARCH
-31, 2025 - -31,2024. . -
Gratuity Compensated Gratuity Compensated

L Absences Absences
Obligation:
Balance as at beginni_ng of 24.61 18.86
the year
Current service cost R 12.79 = 1429 | -
Interest cost 1.66 - 1.34
Benefits paid o
Transfers . - = -
Re-measurements (8.71) - {9.88) -
Present Value of obligation 30.35 - 24.61 -
Current Portion B 0.56 - 0.64
Non-Current Portion 29,79 - 23.97 =

Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
{Rs. It lacs)
- Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
Experience Losses/(Gains) 1.06
Losses from change in demog_raphic assumptions {10.23)} {10.94)
[(Gains )/Losses_from change in financial Assumptions 1.52 -
| Re-measurements of defined benefit plans {8.71) | {9.88)




Sensitive Analysis:

35. Lease Liability

Particulars

Non- Current Lease Liability

Current Lease Liability

The Company’s leased assets primarily consist lease of land.

Lease Liability Reconciliation:

Effects of Key Assumptions on Defined Benefit Obligations ] Amount in Lacs
| Discount Rate — 1 Percent Increase 27.30
Discount Rate — 1 Percent Decrease 3656 __
Salary Escalation Rate -1 percE\t increase 36.50
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 perém_de_criasg 27.27 |
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent increase - - 31.34
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent Decrease - . 31.49
(Rs. infacs)
2024-2025 2023-2024
29.42 32.80
- 3.38 3.02
Total | 32,80 35.82

fRs. In lacs}

Particulars Opening Addition Finance cost | Net Payment | Closing
L | Balance B Balance
| Land 35.82 3.10 6.12 32.80
36, Accounting Ratios
Srno Ratio Name I I;Iurn;ratgr Denominator F.Y 24-25 F.Y 23-24
1 Current Ratioc | Current Asset | Current Liability 1.12 111
Debt-Equity Total Qutside Shareholders
i .
L 2 Ratio Liability Fund .l 423
. Earnings
g | DebtService | llable for Total Debt Service 1.08 1.27
Coverage Ratio .
Debt Service B
Return On Net Profit After Equity
4 . R Shareholders 24.62% 34.13%
Equity Ratio Tax
N | Fund —
Inventory Cost Of Goods
- 5 | Tumnover Ratio | Sold Average Inventory 6.45 3.60
Trade Average Accounts
6 | Receivable Credit Sale a8 37.83 70.52
. Receivable
Turnover Ratio -
7 Trade Payabltas Credit Purchase Average Accounts 2504 19.86
Turnover Ratio Payables B
ital
g | NetCapital f o Working Capital 39.08 36.93
Turnover Ratio
i
g | NetProfit Net Profit Sales 2,00% 1.51%
Ratio o -
Return On Earnings Before
10 | Capital € Capital Employed 12.78% 16.54%
Interest and Tax
Employed | B
1 Return On Income from Investments NA NA
Investment Investments




37.

38.

39,

40.

41.

42.

43,

44,

45,

Company has not entered in to transactions or amount due / from Companies which Struck-Off either under
section 248 of the Act or under section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to corporate social responsibility is as

under: - - - — =

Particulars Amountin Lacs
Amount required to be spent by the company 22.46
22.46

Amount of expenditure incurred

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous year shortfall

Nature of CSR activities underprivileged

For Education of

children

Details of related party transactions
Details of movement in the provision during the year

No undisclosed Income is voluntarily disclosed under any scheme identified by Income tax authorities under any
tax assessments years under provision of the Income Tax Act.

The Cempany has neither traded nor invested in crypto currency during the financial year.

No Proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988).

The Company do not have charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with RGC beyond the statutory

period.

The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or other lender during the
financial year,

Wtilization of Borrowed funds and Share Premium

During the year, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any ather sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{“Ultirnate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

During the year, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ulimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The confirmations of all the balances outstanding as on the reporting date with all the customers,
suppliers, unsecured borrowings, deposits and loans and advances are subject to confirmation with
books of the counter parties.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivatives contract for which there were any
material foreseeabie losses.




46. Capital management
The Company’s abjective when managing capital is to:
- Safeguard its ability to continue as going concern so that the company is able to provide maximize
return to stakeholders and benefits for other stakeholders.
- Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The company board of directors reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this
review, the board considers cost of capital, risk associated with each class of capital requirements
and maintenance of adequate liguidity.

The Net Gearing Ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows: (Rs. tn Lacs)

As At 31.03.2025 | As At 31.03.2024
Gross Debt 27,571.56 19,786.00
Cash and Marketable Securities (1,101.39} (808.77)
Net Debt (A) o - 25,470.17 18,977.23
Total Equity (As per Balance Sheet} (B) 7,319.00 4,753.53
Total Equity and Debt {C = A +B) | 32,789.17 23,746.46
Net Gearing (A/C) - 0.78 0.80

47. Financial Instruments - Disclosure

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
ar deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Disclosures

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the company and provides
additional information on balance sheet item that contain financial Instruments. The details of significant
accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognized in respect of each class of financial asset, financial lability and equity
instrurnent are disclosed in notes.

{i) Fair value measurements
This note provide information about how the company determines fair value of various financial assets.
Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the
financial statements approximates their fair values.

Categories of Financial Instruments
_(Rs. In lacs)

Particulars ] Current Year Previous Year
Financial Assets
_ {Measured at Amortized Cost)
- Trade & Other Receivable - 2,499.45 1,572.78
Cash & Cash Equivalents ! 88.90 808.77
Other Bank Balances B 1,012.50
- Loans - -
- Other Financial Assets 492.92 B 466.37
| = investments - =
Total 4,093.80 2,847.92




(Rs. in lacs)

Currgnt Year

Previous Year

{ii)

| Particulars
Financial Liabilities
{Measured at Amortized Cost}
Borrowings 27,571.56 19,786.00
= Lease Liability 32.80 35.82
- Trade Payable 4,109.02 1,214.43
= Other Financial Liabilities 77.46 913.26
Total 31,790.84 21,949.51

The carrying amount of current financial assets and liabilities as at the end of each year presented
appreximate the fair value because of their short-term nature. The trade receivables, trade payables,
borrowings, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair
values, due to their short-term nature.

Fair value hierarchy
The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that

are either observable or unobservahle and consists of the following three levels:
Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either divectly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observahle market data. Fair values are determined in whole or in part using
a valuation modei based on the assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Financial Risk Management Framework

The company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the company’'s operations. The company’s principal
financial assets include trade and other receivables, receivables from government authorities, security
deposits and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations, The company also holds
investments, The corporate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to
domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude
of risks. These risks include market risk {including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments,
for speculative purposes. The Corporate Treasury function reports quarterly to the Board of Directors of the
company for monitoring risks and reviewing policies implemented to mitigate risk exposures,

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: currency risk and interest rate risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk includes loan and borrowings. The ohjective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptahle parameters, while optimising
the return. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors and Risk




Management Committee. There have been no significant changes to the company’s exposure to market risk
or the methods in which they are managed or measured.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange
rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in &
foreign currency).

As on 31.03.2025, the company do not have any amount outstanding denominated in foreign currency, i.e.
Payable to Creditors and Receivables from Customers.

Price Risk

The Company’s has no exposure to any price related asset or liabilities as on ended of current period and
previous period.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is managed on a company basis. For banks and financtal insti{utions, only high rated
banks/institutions are accepted. For other financial assets, the company assesses and manages credit risk
based on internal credit rating system. The finance function consists of a separate team who assess and
maintain an internal credit rating system. Internal credit rating is performed on a company basis for each
class of financial instruments with different characteristics.

The company is making no provision on Trade Receivables based on Expected Credit Loss Model (ECL).

Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the
Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount
nor the future cash fiows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates. The Company manages
its cash flow interest rate risk by converting higher rate interest loan to lower rate interest (oan.

The Company has exposure toward floating interest rate borrowing Rs 25,099.04 Lacs for the period ended
2024-25 Rs 19,718.05 Lacs for the year 2023-2024,

Interest Rate Sensitivity

If interest rates had been 58 basis point higher/lower and all variable were held constant, the Company’s
profit for the year ended March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 would be decrease/ increase by Rs 125.50 Lacs Rs
98.59 Lacs respectively. The is mainly attribution to interest rates on variable rate borrowings.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time,
or at a reasonable price. The ohjective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and
ensure that funds are avaitable for use as per requirements. The Company generates cash flows from
operations to meet its financial obligations, maintains adequate liquid assets in the form of cash & cash
equivalents and has undrawn short term line of credits from banks to ensure necessary liquidity. The
Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. During the
year, the Company has been regular in repayment of principal and interest on borrowings on or before due
dates. The Company did not have defaults of principal and interest as on reporting date. The Company
requires funds both for short-term operaticnal needs as well as for long-term investment programmes mainly



in growth projects. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

{Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Less than 1 | 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Above 5 |[Total
year Years
| Period ended March 31, 2025 __ |
| Current Borrowings
Secured 11,868.78 2 = 11,868.78
Unsecured 1,114.31 1,114.31
Total Current Borrowings (A) 12,983.05 12,983.05
Non-current Borrowings o
Secured 1,765.28 1,917.73 4,127.94 484.20 8,295.15
Unsecured 333.33 5,973.18 6,305.51
votallNol- Gurent 2,098.61 7,890.90 4,127.94 484.20 14,601.66
Borrowings (B}
Total 15,081.66 7,890.90 4,127.94 484,20 27,584.70
Add: Interest accru.ed but 50.34 i i _ )
_not due on borrowings .

MNote: The amount of unamortized processing charges has not been deducted from the non-current

horrowings.
Particulars Less than 1 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Above 5 Total
year — Years -

Year Ended MARCH 31,2024 -
Current Borrowings =
Secured 7,093.18 | : ! - 7,093.18
Unsecured 547.95 - - _ 547.95
Total Current Borrowings [A) 7,641.13 B - | - | 764113
Non-current Borrowings 1 -
Secured 1,347.90 | 1,403.38 4,036.08 96.56 | 6,883.92
Unsecured 344.02 4,654.85 277.78 5.276.65
Total Non-current 1,691.92 6,058.23 4,313.85 96.56 12,160.57
Borrowings {B) i

| Total 9,333.05 6,058.23 4,313.85 96.56 19,801.70
Add: Interest a.ccrued but not 20.44 . ) i )
due on borrowings

49. Discontinued Operations;
Accounting Policy

Non-Current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset {or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-Current assets and disposal groups classifled as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell except for those assets that are specifically exempt under relevant Ind AS.
Once the assets are classified as “Held for sale”, those are not subjected to deprecigtion-ill disposal.

; I




An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset {or disposal group) to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset
{or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the
date of derecognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from the other assets in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

Discontinued Qperations

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed off or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

i}  Disposal of Pipe Division
{1} Description:

The Company had taken a manufacturing facility at Survey No. 107/8/9, Sihor Ghanghali Road,
Ghanghali, Sihor, Bhavnagar - 364240, Gujarat, India for manufacturing of MS Pipes on lease vide
lease agreement dated June 04, 2024 for an initial term of five years commencing from July 01,
2024,

The company has decided to discontinue the operations of its Pipe Division due to its inability to

“achreve the expected revenue and profit argin targets, resUlting i~ 16sses from the division.
Accordingly, the Company has ceased operations at the said facility with effect from December 1,
2024, Furthermore, pursuant to the notice of termination dated December 1, 2024, the lease
agreement for the facility shall stand terminated with effect from February 28, 2025.

{2) Financial Performance:

Particulars 2024-2025

Income -
Revenue From Operaticn 187.57
- Total Income il 187.57
Expenses o
) Cost Of Raw Material Consumed 189.58
' Changes In Inventories
Employee Benefit Expen; 21.57
| Other Expenses_ L 44.57 B
 Total Expenses 255.72
_ Profit}{l.oss} from Dlscontinued opera_tigns_» before tax {68.15)

Income tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit/{Loss) from Discontinued operations _ {68.15)




{3) Cash Flow Information:

Particulars For the year ended
| 31st March, 2025
Profit/{Loss} from Discontinued operations before tax _ [68.15)
Add / (Less) - Adjustments
Operating profit before working capital changes (68.15)
Changes in Working Capital;
{Increase} / Decrease in Assets: |
Trade Receivables o . -
Other financial assets {1.27)
Other Current Assets (0.42)
Inventories - - =
__Increase / {Decrease) in Liabilities: - o
~ Trade Payables 0.47
_ Other liabilities 0.12
Cash generated/{used) from operations {1.09)
Income taxes paid {Net of Refund) -
MNet cash inflow from operating activities {65.24)
Net cash Inflow/ {outflow) from investing activities
| Net cash inflow/ (outflow} from financing activities =
Net increase/{decrease) in cash generated from discontinued (69.24)
operations

{4) Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale:

The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held for sale in relation to the discontinued
_operations as at March 31, 2025:

Particulars 2024-2025

Assets classified as held for sale
Other Current Assets 0.42

Inventaries -
B R_aw Material =
- Finished Goods

Trade Receivables
ST Loans and Advances 1.27

Total of assets of disposal group held for sale 1.68

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for

sale
Other Current Liabilities 067 |
Trade Payables 0.12

_Tot_al of_liabilities of disposal_g[oug as held for s;e o 1.09

Net assets of disposal group held for sale 0.59




Notes:

a) The entire amount is attributable to equity holders of the Group.
b) The net assets (assets less liahilities) forming part of the disposal group are measured at lower of fair
value less cost of disposal and its carrying amount.The Group has estimated the fair value less cost of
disposal approximates to the carrying amount of these net assets held for sale.

50. Segment Reporting

In line with Ind AS 108 operating segments and hasis of the review of operations being done by the senior
managerment, the operations of the group falls under civil construction business which is considered to be the
only reportable segment by the management, The Company is principally engaged in a single business segment
viz., “Steel TMT Bar Manufacture” which is also the major revenue generating product.

51. Previous year figures have been regrouped, whenever necessary to confirm to current year classification.
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VMS TMT LIMITED

Note No. : 2a: Property, Plant and Equipments, Right of Use Assct and Intangible Assei

Motes:

a)

b)
c}
d)
€}
)]
g)

iy

i)
)]

The Company has assessed the impairment of assets and is ol Ihe apinion that since the company is going concern, there is no indication cxist for the
impairment of the PPE

The useful life of the PPE have been defined in the accounting policies

No PPE have been classified 2s held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105,

The company has not revalued ils Property, Plant & Equipment {including right of use assets)

No Capital expenses was incurred on Assets not owned by the the company during the year

There is no obsolete asset which has been so far held under Property, Plant & Equipment

There is no restriction on title of PPE and nothing has been pledged as securily (except the hypothecation of commercial vehicles against the lien taken from
Fil's} and labiltty

There is no amount to be received on account of compensation fram thitd party Tor items of PPE that were impaired, lost or given (o the company that is to be
recognized in the statement ol profit & Loss account

There are no temporarily idle PPE

The company does not hold any benami propery and there are no proceedings which have been initiated ar pending against the company under the Benami
Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and rules made lhereunder

Nole No, : 2b  Capital Work-In-Progress

i As at As at
Particutars
31st March , 2025 Jist Mavch, 2024
Balance at e beginning 5,163.42 362 88
Add : Additions 422235 4,805 54
Less - Capitalised during the vear 10 384 83 :
Balanee at the endd _— 5.93 5, 108.:2
Ageing of Capital Work-in-Progress
Agcing Schedule of capitnl work-in-progress as at 3 1st Marveh, 2025 -
Particulars Amount in CWIP for perind of
) Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 vears More than 3 Years Total
Project in progress 503 . = - 593
Aaeing Scheduele of eapital work-in-progiess as at 31st March 2024
Ll
Parficulars Amount in CWIP for period of
) Less than T Year 1-2 Years 2-3 vears Motre than 3 Years Total
| Project in progiess - 4,805 54 362 88 - = 3,168,42
“There are no capital work m progress where compiciion is over duc neaist origimal planned umelines or where eslimated cost exceeded 11s ongmal plinned cosl as on

31st March 2025 & 3151 March 2024
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VM35 TMT LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended on 31st March 2025
(All amount are¥ in Lacs unless otherwise stated)

Annexure - Cto Note - 18 - Trade Payable

Trade Payables ageing schedule for the year ended at

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
payment
Particulars
Not Due | <1 year | 1-2years 2-3 years | >3 years

31st March, 2025
(a) MSME = 64.29 - - = 64.29
{b) Others - 3.845.61 199.12 - - 4,044.73
{¢) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
{d) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total - 3.909.91 199.12 - - 4,109.02
31st March, 2024 - - - - -
(a}) MSME = 237.55 - 237.55
(b) Others - 976.88 - - - 976.88
{c) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(d} Disputed dues - Others = - - - & -
Total - 1.214.43 < - - 1.214.43




